
 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high 
– quality water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district 
for future generations. Be open to providing other services desired by our community. 

AGENDA 
District Board of Directors 

8888 Cabrillo Highway  
Montara, California 94037 

 

November 2, 2023 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting will take place in the District offices located at the above address. Seating is 
limited and social distancing will be practiced due to ongoing public health and safety 
concerns. Simultaneous public access and participation is also available remotely, via 
telephone or the ZOOM application: 
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 
 

WEBSITE: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87038002304?pwd=SWtDV2M0b2prQ0VReGMwRTMwcGdnZz09 

 

 
MEETING ID: 870 3800 2304 

 
Password:  379024 

 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER:  +1 669 900 9128 

 
INSTRUCTIONS for remote access are available at  https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-
us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting. You also may view video during the meeting via live stream 
or after the meeting at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87038002304?pwd=SWtDV2M0b2prQ0VReGMwRTMwcGdnZz09
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting


https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen
=true&showtabssearch=false&autostart=false. If you experience technical difficulties or have technical 
questions prior to or during the meeting, please contact MWSD’s IT support at (650) 728-7843.   
 
Note: Public participation is not permitted during closed session discussion items.  
 
Director Boyd will be attending the meeting remotely from the following location: 
 
60 Sea Walk Dr 
The Sea Ranch, CA  95497 
 
Public Comment 
In accordance with the Government Code, members of the public may address the Board on specific 
agenda items when the matter is announced by the Board President. Any other item of interest that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District may be addressed during the Oral Comments 
portion of the meeting.  For participants attending the meeting virtually, a “raise hand” button is 
available for every Zoom user wishing to speak and should be used to alert the President of the intent 
to comment.  
 
Upon request, this Agenda and written agenda materials will be made available in appropriate 
alternative formats to persons with a disability. Request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting should be emailed to info@mwsd.net or 
submitted by phone at 650-728-3545 at least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted 
whenever possible and resolved in favor of accessibility. Materials related to an item on this Agenda 
submitted to the Board after distribution of the Agenda Packet are available in the District Clerk’s 
office during normal business hours. Such documents may also be available on the District’s web site 
(www.mwsd.montara.org) subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER  

ROLL CALL 
PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT 
ORAL COMMENTS (Items other than those on the agenda) 

PUBLIC HEARING  

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Approve Minutes for Regular Scheduled Board Meeting October 5 and 19, 2023. 
2. Approve Financial Statements for September 2023 
3. Approve Warrants for November 1, 2023 
4. SAM Flow Report 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received 
7. Monthly Water Production Report 
8. Rain Report 
9. Monthly Solar Energy Report 
10. Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service Report for August 2023 

 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen=true&showtabssearch=false&autostart=false
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen=true&showtabssearch=false&autostart=false
mailto:info@mwsd.net
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_1.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_2.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_3.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_4.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_5.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_6.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_7.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_8.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_9.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/Consent_10.pdf


 

 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Review and Possible Action Concerning Receipt of Fiscal Year 2022-23 Audit 
2. Review Alta Vista Groundwater Monitoring Update 

 
 REPORTS 

1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Slater-Carter). 
2. Mid-Coast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter). 
3. CSDA Report (Slater-Carter). 
4. LAFCo Report (Slater-Carter). 
5. Attorney’s Report (Fitzgerald). 
6. Directors’ Reports. 
7. General Manager’s Report (Heldmaier). 

FUTURE AGENDAS 

 CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 

 

Case Name: City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District, et al. (Santa Clara 
County Superior Court No. 17CV316927) 

Case Name: In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-
02873 (City of Camden, et al., v. 3M Company, No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG, United States District 
Court, District of South Carolina, Charleston Division) 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)) Initiation of Litigation (2 potential cases)   

 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF ANY  

ADJOURNMENT 

The District has a curfew of 10:30 p.m. for all meetings. The meeting 

may be extended for one hour by vote of the Board. 

https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/NB_1.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/NB_1.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/NB_2.pdf
https://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/280/MR.pdf


































           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

   

SUBJECT:   Unaudited Financial Statements – Executive 
Summary 

 
Budget vs. Actual – Sewer July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023 - 
Variances over $2,000: 
  

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $103,183 above Budget – The District 
received an ERAF distribution of $205,793 in August. 

• 4710 Sewer Service Charges, $4,303 above Budget – Based upon 
prorated sewer service charges by customer. 

• 4720 Sewer Service Refunds, $2,500 below Budget – No refunds issued 
to date. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending September 30, 
2023 was $110,456 above budget. Total operating income received to 
date is $140,707. 

• 5200 Board of Directors, $5,576 above Budget – Payment made to 
Redistricting Partners for on-going work.  

• 5300 Insurance, $9,485 above Budget – The District pays for insurance 
premiums at the beginning of the year, the variance will decrease as the 
FY continues.    

• 5400 Legal, $13,429 below Budget – Costs related to the defense of 
various legal proceedings is less than expected at this point.  

• 5510 Maintenance, Office, $4,037 below Budget – Various projects are 
planned for the office that have not yet begun.  

• 5610 Accounting, $2,173 below Budget – Invoice for September has not 
yet been posted.  

• 5630 Consulting, $4,002 below Budget – Additional costs expected later in 
fiscal year.  

• 5640 Data Services, $7,913 above Budget – Annual payment made for 
the use of Parcel Management System, used for Property Tax Roll. 

• 5800 Labor, $15,599 above Budget – Due to the funding of GM salary & 
benefit increase.  

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $2,500 below Budget – No claims filed to 
date.  

• 6200 Engineering, $11,112 below Budget – Majority of costs have been 
related to CIP projects and booked in account 8075 Sewer CIP.   

• 6600 Collection/Transmission, $2,500 below Budget – No activity to date. 



           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 6900 SAM Expenses, $122,734 below Budget – The District adopted the 
original budget provided by SAM. After adoption by MWSD, SAM adjusted 
their infrastructure budget downward.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending September 
30, 2023, were $140,127 below Budget.  

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending September 30, 2023, 
were $128,910 below budget.  For a net ordinary gain of $239,367 
above Budget.  Actual net ordinary loss is $568,060. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $33,583 above Budget – No new connections sold 
in September. 2 sold in July.   

• 7200 Interest Income, LAIF, $21,929 above budget – Due to the increase 
Federal interest rates. 

• 8000 CIP, $820,473 below Budget – Minimal activity to date, mainly 
engineering support and generator expenses.  

• 9200 I-Bank Loan, $8,007 below budget – Due to timing.  
  



           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   
Budget vs. Actual – Water July 1, 2023 thru September 30, 2023 - Variances 
over $2,000: 

 

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $103,183 above Budget – The District 
received an ERAF distribution of $205,793 in August. 

• 4850 Water Sales refunds, $2,000 below Budget – No refunds issued to 
date. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending September 30, 
2023 was $107,368 above budget. Total operating revenue received 
to date is $615,518. 

• 5200 Board of Directors, $5,576 above Budget – Payment made to 
Redistricting Partners for on-going work.  

• 5240 CDPH Fees, $4,500 below Budget – first bills are typically paid in 
December. 

• 5300 Insurance, $10,535 above Budget – The District pays for insurance 
premiums at the beginning of the year, the variance will decrease as the 
FY continues.  

• 5400 Legal, $7,811 above Budget – General legal expenses.   

• 5510 Maintenance, Office, $4,848 below Budget – Various projects are 
planned for the office that have not yet begun. 

• 5530 Memberships, $6,250 below Budget – Membership fees are typically 
paid at the beginning of the calendar year.   

• 5610 Accounting, $2,850 below Budget – Invoice for September has not 
yet been posted.  

• 5630 Consulting, $7,752 below Budget – Additional costs expected later in 
fiscal year. 

• 5800 Labor & Wages, $2,459 below Budget – Due to the timing of payroll 
increases.  

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $2,107 below Budget – One minor claim 
paid in August.  

• 6180 Communications, $5,000 below Budget – No activity to date. 

• 6200 Engineering, $16,175 below Budget – Due to reduced need for water 
quality engineering reporting. More expected as year goes forward.  

• 6370 Lab Supplies & Equipment, $4,799 above Budget – Major purchase 
of inventory made in August. 

• 6400 Pumping, $8,024 below Budget – PG&E costs are budgeted high in 
anticipation of large “true up” bill which is received in the spring.   

• 6500 Supply, $12,351 below Budget – Q1 water purchase takes place in 
October.   



           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 6600 Collection/Transmission, $26,816 below Budget – work on-going for 
various collections projects.  

• 6700 Treatment, $2,832 below Budget – Additional costs anticipated as 
the FY moves forward.   

• 6800 Vehicles, $2,010 below Budget – Allocation of 25% to Sewer Fund 
for joint use of vehicles.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending September 
30, 2023 were $67,490 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending September 30, 2023 
were $67,857 below budget. For a net ordinary income of $175,224 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income was $116,620. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $72,023 above Budget – No new connections sold 
in September. 2 sold in July.  

• 7250 CAMP interest, $31,095 above Budget – Due to increase in federal 
interest rates.  

• 7650 Water System Reliability, $2,295 above Budget – Pro-rata charges 
paid by customers. Not through property tax roll.  

• 8000 CIP, $900,457 below Budget – Projects are currently on-going and 
others are being planned. 

• 9100 GO Bond interest expense, $24,837 below Budget – Difference due 
to timing.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
This is for Board information only 



Sewer

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 21,208.50 20,750.01 458.49
4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 0.00 1,000.02 -1,000.02
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 0.00 250.02 -250.02
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 0.00 1,000.02 -1,000.02
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 0.00 250.02 -250.02
4460 · Remodel Fees 3,362.00 2,000.01 1,361.99
4470 · Other Fees 160.00

Total 4400 · Fees 3,522.00 4,500.09 -978.09

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 103,182.99 0.00 103,182.99
4710 · Sewer Service Charges 4,303.33 0.00 4,303.33
4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer 0.00 -2,500.02 2,500.02
4760 · Waste Collection Revenues 6,365.04 7,500.00 -1,134.96
4990 · Other Revenue 2,124.64

Total Income 140,706.50 30,250.08 110,456.42

Gross Profit 140,706.50 30,250.08 110,456.42

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 1,943.73 1,500.00 443.73
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 2,313.85 1,000.02 1,313.83
5220 · Director Fees 3,012.28 2,500.02 512.26
5230 · Election Expenses 7,500.00 3,750.00 3,750.00

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 12,826.13 7,250.04 5,576.09

5250 · Conference Attendance 1,145.03 2,500.02 -1,354.99
5270 · Information Systems 2,135.13 1,500.00 635.13
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 125.01 -125.01
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 12,109.75 2,500.02 9,609.73

Total 5300 · Insurance 12,109.75 2,625.03 9,484.72

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 750.00 -750.00
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 25,829.15 50,000.01 -24,170.86
5440 · Litigation 10,741.44

Total 5400 · Legal 36,570.59 50,000.01 -13,429.42

5510 · Maintenance, Office 1,122.19 6,250.02 -5,127.83
5530 · Memberships 0.00 1,250.01 -1,250.01
5540 · Office Supplies 1,418.96 2,062.50 -643.54
5550 · Postage 0.00 287.52 -287.52
5560 · Printing & Publishing 898.32 562.50 335.82

2:14 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Sewer

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

5600 · Professional Services
5610 · Accounting 7,577.50 9,750.00 -2,172.50
5620 · Audit 2,500.00 3,375.00 -875.00
5630 · Consulting 9,060.51 13,062.51 -4,002.00
5640 · Data Services 10,412.73 2,500.02 7,912.71
5650 · Labor & HR Support 640.50 625.02 15.48
5660 · Payroll Services 308.84 250.02 58.82

Total 5600 · Professional Services 30,500.08 29,562.57 937.51

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 0.00 625.02 -625.02
5720 · Telephone & Internet 11,886.33 10,000.02 1,886.31
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 500.01 -500.01
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 50.01 -50.01
5790 · Other Adminstrative 337.66
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 8,634.88 5,371.50 3,263.38
5820 · Employee Benefits 12,658.41 13,033.77 -375.36
5830 · Disability Insurance 457.65 567.75 -110.10
5840 · Payroll Taxes 5,876.08 5,536.77 339.31
5850 · PARS 4,964.71 0.00 4,964.71
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 40,407.15 30,654.27 9,752.88
5920 · Staff 47,867.49 51,441.75 -3,574.26
5930 · Staff Certification 525.00 450.00 75.00
5940 · Staff Overtime 1,775.15 438.51 1,336.64
5950 · Staff Standby 654.55

Total 5900 · Wages 91,229.34 82,984.53 8,244.81

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 728.25 -728.25

Total 5800 · Labor 123,821.07 108,222.57 15,598.50

Total 5000 · Administrative 236,714.97 225,497.85 11,217.12

6000 · Operations
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 0.00 2,500.02 -2,500.02
6195 · Education & Training 0.00 500.01 -500.01
6200 · Engineering

6220 · General Engineering 6,388.00 17,500.02 -11,112.02

Total 6200 · Engineering 6,388.00 17,500.02 -11,112.02

6330 · Facilities
6335 · Alarm Services 1,681.50 1,500.00 181.50
6337 · Landscaping 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00

Total 6330 · Facilities 1,681.50 3,000.00 -1,318.50

6400 · Pumping
6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 10,693.42 12,500.01 -1,806.59
6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 6,030.92 3,750.00 2,280.92

Total 6400 · Pumping 16,724.34 16,250.01 474.33

2:14 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Sewer

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 0.00 2,500.02 -2,500.02

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 0.00 2,500.02 -2,500.02

6770 · Uniforms 0.00 50.01 -50.01
6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 638.02 500.01 138.01
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 244.25 50.01 194.24
6830 · Truck Repairs 31.08 250.02 -218.94

Total 6800 · Vehicles 913.35 800.04 113.31

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside
6910 · SAM Collections 73,715.49 73,715.52 -0.03
6920 · SAM Operations 356,555.73 451,613.01 -95,057.28
6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 0.00 11,250.00 -11,250.00
6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 16,072.92 32,500.02 -16,427.10

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 446,344.14 569,078.55 -122,734.41

Total 6000 · Operations 472,051.33 612,178.68 -140,127.35

Total Expense 708,766.30 837,676.53 -128,910.23

Net Ordinary Income -568,059.80 -807,426.45 239,366.65

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 65,222.00 55,000.02 10,221.98
7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 0.00 13,750.02 -13,750.02
7152 · Connection Fee Refunds 0.00 -5,000.01 5,000.01
7153 · Add'l Fixture Units (New Const) 16,362.00 5,000.01 11,361.99
7155 · Add'l Fixture Units (Remodel) 25,749.00 5,000.01 20,748.99

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 107,333.00 73,750.05 33,582.95

7200 · Interest Income - LAIF 36,929.21 15,000.00 21,929.21

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 144,262.21 88,750.05 55,512.16

Total Other Income 144,262.21 88,750.05 55,512.16

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8075 · Sewer 179,348.25 999,821.25 -820,473.00

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 179,348.25 999,821.25 -820,473.00

2:14 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Sewer

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,671.14 1,794.00 -122.86
9200 · I-Bank Loan 1,601.35 9,608.00 -8,006.65

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 3,272.49 11,402.00 -8,129.51

Total Other Expense 182,620.74 1,011,223.25 -828,602.51

Net Other Income -38,358.53 -922,473.20 884,114.67

Net Income -606,418.33 -1,729,899.65 1,123,481.32

2:14 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 4



Water

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4400 · Fees
4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 0.00 1,000.02 -1,000.02
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 0.00 150.00 -150.00
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 0.00 1,000.02 -1,000.02
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 0.00 0.00 0.00
4450 · Mainline Extension Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00
4470 · Other Fees 160.00

Total 4400 · Fees 160.00 2,150.04 -1,990.04

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 103,182.97 0.00 103,182.97
4740 · Testing, Backflow 5,158.00 4,500.00 658.00
4810 · Water Sales, Domestic 504,874.06 503,500.02 1,374.04
4850 · Water Sales Refunds, Customer 0.00 -2,000.01 2,000.01
4990 · Other Revenue 2,142.64

Total Income 615,517.67 508,150.05 107,367.62

Gross Profit 615,517.67 508,150.05 107,367.62

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 1,943.72 1,375.02 568.70
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 2,313.85 1,000.02 1,313.83
5220 · Director Fees 3,012.27 2,500.02 512.25
5230 · Election Expenses 7,500.00 3,750.00 3,750.00

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 12,826.12 7,250.04 5,576.08

5240 · CDPH Fees 0.00 4,500.00 -4,500.00
5250 · Conference Attendance 1,800.99 3,750.00 -1,949.01
5270 · Information Systems 2,135.12 1,625.01 510.11
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 125.01 -125.01
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 13,159.75 2,500.02 10,659.73

Total 5300 · Insurance 13,159.75 2,625.03 10,534.72

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 750.00 -750.00
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 25,809.16 18,750.00 7,059.16
5440 · Litigation 752.00

Total 5400 · Legal 26,561.16 18,750.00 7,811.16

5510 · Maintenance, Office 1,401.57 6,250.02 -4,848.45
5530 · Memberships 0.00 6,250.02 -6,250.02
5540 · Office Supplies 1,418.92 1,562.52 -143.60
5550 · Postage 3,872.76 3,687.51 185.25
5560 · Printing & Publishing 2,914.79 1,437.51 1,477.28

2:15 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Water

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

5600 · Professional Services
5610 · Accounting 7,577.50 9,750.00 -2,172.50
5620 · Audit 2,500.00 3,375.00 -875.00
5630 · Consulting 9,060.51 16,812.51 -7,752.00
5640 · Data Services 1,199.50 250.02 949.48
5650 · Labor & HR Support 640.50 625.02 15.48
5660 · Payroll Services 308.90 250.02 58.88

Total 5600 · Professional Services 21,286.91 31,062.57 -9,775.66

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 0.00 625.02 -625.02
5720 · Telephone & Internet 13,681.50 12,500.01 1,181.49
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 282.85 500.01 -217.16
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 125.01 -125.01
5790 · Other Adminstrative 3,431.71
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 16,182.23 12,865.26 3,316.97
5820 · Employee Benefits 35,241.33 38,822.76 -3,581.43
5830 · Disability Insurance 988.17 1,393.02 -404.85
5840 · Payroll Taxes 14,202.85 14,878.50 -675.65
5850 · PARS 11,180.40 11,775.27 -594.87
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 40,407.21 30,654.27 9,752.94
5920 · Staff 131,214.37 138,610.02 -7,395.65
5930 · Staff Certification 2,625.00 2,850.00 -225.00
5940 · Staff Overtime 16,274.91 15,105.00 1,169.91
5950 · Staff Standby 9,553.58 7,271.52 2,282.06

Total 5900 · Wages 200,075.07 194,490.81 5,584.26

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 6,103.26 -6,103.26

Total 5800 · Labor 277,870.05 280,328.88 -2,458.83

Total 5000 · Administrative 384,587.92 384,954.18 -366.26

6000 · Operations
6160 · Backflow Prevention 0.00 250.02 -250.02
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 393.15 2,500.02 -2,106.87
6180 · Communications

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 0.00 5,000.01 -5,000.01

Total 6180 · Communications 0.00 5,000.01 -5,000.01

6195 · Education & Training 164.99 1,250.01 -1,085.02
6200 · Engineering

6220 · General Engineering 825.00 2,500.02 -1,675.02
6230 · Water Quality Engineering 14,250.00 28,750.02 -14,500.02

Total 6200 · Engineering 15,075.00 31,250.04 -16,175.04

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 2,274.38 2,500.02 -225.64

2:15 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Water

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

6330 · Facilities
6335 · Alarm Services 391.26 500.01 -108.75
6337 · Landscaping 1,925.00 3,750.00 -1,825.00

Total 6330 · Facilities 2,316.26 4,250.01 -1,933.75

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 5,799.51 1,000.02 4,799.49
6380 · Meter Reading 0.00 125.01 -125.01
6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 21,516.36 23,750.01 -2,233.65
6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 2,260.00 7,500.00 -5,240.00
6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 874.29 1,250.01 -375.72
6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 0.00 175.02 -175.02

Total 6400 · Pumping 24,650.65 32,675.04 -8,024.39

6500 · Supply
6510 · Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 0.00 625.02 -625.02
6520 · Maintenance, Wells 2,024.09 6,250.02 -4,225.93
6530 · Water Purchases 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00

Total 6500 · Supply 2,024.09 14,375.04 -12,350.95

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6610 · Hydrants 0.00 2,500.02 -2,500.02
6620 · Maintenance, Water Mains 24,130.27 42,500.01 -18,369.74
6630 · Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 2,127.00 5,000.01 -2,873.01
6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 36.32 1,250.01 -1,213.69
6650 · Maint., Distribution General 1,443.75 3,750.00 -2,306.25
6670 · Meters 7,946.93 7,500.00 446.93

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 35,684.27 62,500.05 -26,815.78

6700 · Treatment
6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 7,646.01 6,250.02 1,395.99
6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 3,605.37 3,750.00 -144.63
6730 · Treatment Analysis 10,330.83 8,750.01 1,580.82

Total 6700 · Treatment 21,582.21 18,750.03 2,832.18

6770 · Uniforms 1,469.71 625.02 844.69
6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 1,914.06 3,000.00 -1,085.94
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 732.74 500.01 232.73
6830 · Truck Repairs 93.23 1,250.01 -1,156.78

Total 6800 · Vehicles 2,740.03 4,750.02 -2,009.99

6890 · Other Operations 135.62

Total 6000 · Operations 114,309.87 181,800.36 -67,490.49

Total Expense 498,897.79 566,754.54 -67,856.75

Net Ordinary Income 116,619.88 -58,604.49 175,224.37

2:15 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through September 2023
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Water

Jul - Sep 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 60,317.58 46,250.01 14,067.57
7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 5,732.88
7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 61,712.50 13,750.02 47,962.48
7165 · Meter Pass Thru Costs 4,260.50

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 132,023.46 60,000.03 72,023.43

7250 · CAMP Interest Income 46,094.52 15,000.00 31,094.52
7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 0.00 0.00 0.00
7650 · Water System Reliability 2,294.67 0.00 2,294.67

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 180,412.65 75,000.03 105,412.62

Total Other Income 180,412.65 75,000.03 105,412.62

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8100 · Water 65,793.25 966,250.02 -900,456.77

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 65,793.25 966,250.02 -900,456.77

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9100 · Interest Expense - GO Bonds 4,967.53 29,805.00 -24,837.47
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,671.16 1,794.00 -122.84
9150 · SRF Loan 0.00 0.00 0.00
9210 · Conservation Program/Rebates 150.00 0.00 150.00

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 6,788.69 31,599.00 -24,810.31

Total Other Expense 72,581.94 997,849.02 -925,267.08

Net Other Income 107,830.71 -922,848.99 1,030,679.70

Net Income 224,450.59 -981,453.48 1,205,904.07

2:15 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

10/19/23 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through September 2023

See Executive Summary Document Page 4
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Sewer Water TOTAL

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Sewer - Bank Accounts

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 4,295,441.35 0.00 4,295,441.35
LAIF Investment Fund

Capital Reserve 4,215,941.10 0.00 4,215,941.10
Operating Reserve 524,507.00 0.00 524,507.00

Total LAIF Investment Fund 4,740,448.10 0.00 4,740,448.10

Total Sewer - Bank Accounts 9,035,889.45 0.00 9,035,889.45
Water - Bank Accounts

CAMP Investment Fund
Capital Reserve 0.00 3,029,695.42 3,029,695.42
Operating Reserve 0.00 441,252.33 441,252.33

Total CAMP Investment Fund 0.00 3,470,947.75 3,470,947.75
Wells Fargo Operating - Water 0.00 -355.14 -355.14
Restricted Cash

2020 GO Bonds Fund - Chase 0.00 689,691.67 689,691.67

Total Restricted Cash 0.00 689,691.67 689,691.67

Total Water - Bank Accounts 0.00 4,160,284.28 4,160,284.28

Total Checking/Savings 9,035,889.45 4,160,284.28 13,196,173.73
Accounts Receivable

Sewer - Accounts Receivable
Lease Receivable 227,145.00 0.00 227,145.00
Accounts Receivable -7,352.92 0.00 -7,352.92
Sewer - Accounts Receivable - Other -10,061.79 0.00 -10,061.79

Total Sewer - Accounts Receivable 209,730.29 0.00 209,730.29
Water - Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 0.00 13,967.03 13,967.03
Accounts Rec. - Backflow 0.00 24,678.11 24,678.11
Accounts Rec. - Water Residents 0.00 209,496.70 209,496.70
Unbilled Water Receivables 0.00 243,766.73 243,766.73

Total Water - Accounts Receivable 0.00 491,908.57 491,908.57

Total Accounts Receivable 209,730.29 491,908.57 701,638.86
Other Current Assets

Maint/Parts Inventory 0.00 42,656.32 42,656.32

Total Other Current Assets 0.00 42,656.32 42,656.32

Total Current Assets 9,245,619.74 4,694,849.17 13,940,468.91
Fixed Assets

Sewer - Fixed Assets
General Plant 9,149,397.80 0.00 9,149,397.80
Land 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00
Other Capital Improv.

Sewer-Original Cost 685,599.18 0.00 685,599.18
Other Cap. Improv. 2,564,810.39 0.00 2,564,810.39

Total Other Capital Improv. 3,250,409.57 0.00 3,250,409.57
Seal Cove Collection System 995,505.00 0.00 995,505.00
Sewage Collection Facility

Collection Facility - Org. Cost 1,349,064.00 0.00 1,349,064.00
Collection Facility - Other 3,991,243.33 0.00 3,991,243.33

Total Sewage Collection Facility 5,340,307.33 0.00 5,340,307.33
Treatment Facility 244,539.84 0.00 244,539.84
Accumulated Depreciation -10,872,874.00 0.00 -10,872,874.00

Total Sewer - Fixed Assets 8,112,285.54 0.00 8,112,285.54
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Water - Fixed Assets

General Plant 0.00 29,787,721.97 29,787,721.97
Land & Easements 0.00 734,500.00 734,500.00
Surface Water Rights 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00
Water Meters 0.00 1,058,985.00 1,058,985.00
Fixed Assets - Other 0.00 48,171.78 48,171.78
Accumulated Depreciation 0.00 -15,809,611.00 -15,809,611.00

Total Water - Fixed Assets 0.00 16,119,767.75 16,119,767.75

Total Fixed Assets 8,112,285.54 16,119,767.75 24,232,053.29
Other Assets

Sewer - Other Assets
Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 93,759.00 0.00 93,759.00
Joint Power Authority

SAM - Orig Collection Facility 981,592.00 0.00 981,592.00
SAM - Expansion 1,705,955.08 0.00 1,705,955.08

Total Joint Power Authority 2,687,547.08 0.00 2,687,547.08

Total Sewer - Other Assets 2,781,306.08 0.00 2,781,306.08
Water - Other Assets

Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 0.00 208,689.00 208,689.00
Due from Sewer 0.00 1,391,848.36 1,391,848.36

Total Water - Other Assets 0.00 1,600,537.36 1,600,537.36

Total Other Assets 2,781,306.08 1,600,537.36 4,381,843.44

TOTAL ASSETS 20,139,211.36 22,415,154.28 42,554,365.64

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable - Sewer -251,516.63 0.00 -251,516.63
Accounts Payable - Water 0.00 423,059.10 423,059.10

Total Accounts Payable -251,516.63 423,059.10 171,542.47
Other Current Liabilities

Water - Net Pension Liability 0.00 -137,836.00 -137,836.00
Sewer - Net Pension Liability -61,926.00 0.00 -61,926.00
Sewer - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 10,926.30 0.00 10,926.30
Deposits Payable 45,074.17 0.00 45,074.17
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 60,493.97 0.00 60,493.97

Total Sewer - Current Liabilities 116,494.44 0.00 116,494.44
Water - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 0.00 20,027.78 20,027.78
Construction Deposits Payable 0.00 -589.09 -589.09
Deposits Payable 0.00 -43,146.00 -43,146.00
GO Bonds - S/T 0.00 464,600.85 464,600.85
PFP Water Deposits 0.00 4,302.50 4,302.50
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 0.00 60,493.97 60,493.97
SRF Loan Payable X109 - Current 0.00 184,654.44 184,654.44
Temporary Construction Meter 0.00 38,418.37 38,418.37

Total Water - Current Liabilities 0.00 728,762.82 728,762.82
Payroll Liabilities

Employee Benefits Payable -1,413.92 0.00 -1,413.92

Total Payroll Liabilities -1,413.92 0.00 -1,413.92

Total Other Current Liabilities 53,154.52 590,926.82 644,081.34

Total Current Liabilities -198,362.11 1,013,985.92 815,623.81
Long Term Liabilities

Sewer - Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Inflows (Sewer Leases) 221,325.00 0.00 221,325.00
Due to Water Fund 1,538,871.56 0.00 1,538,871.56
Accrued Vacations 29,339.03 0.00 29,339.03
I-Bank Loan 596,289.45 0.00 596,289.45
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 199,511.05 0.00 199,511.05

Total Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 2,585,336.09 0.00 2,585,336.09
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Water - Long Term Liabilities
2020 GO Bonds 0.00 4,302,407.38 4,302,407.38
Accrued Vacations 0.00 37,678.17 37,678.17
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 0.00 199,511.11 199,511.11
SRF Loan Payable - X109 0.00 2,333,514.62 2,333,514.62

Total Water - Long Term Liabilities 0.00 6,873,111.28 6,873,111.28
Deferred Inflows (Pensions)

Sewer 54,563.00 0.00 54,563.00
Water 0.00 121,446.00 121,446.00

Total Deferred Inflows (Pensions) 54,563.00 121,446.00 176,009.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 2,639,899.09 6,994,557.28 9,634,456.37

Total Liabilities 2,441,536.98 8,008,543.20 10,450,080.18
Equity

Sewer - Equity Accounts
Capital Assets Net 3,408,252.20 0.00 3,408,252.20
Fund Balance - Unrestricted 8,646,292.87 0.00 8,646,292.87
Retained Earnings 91,726.60 0.00 91,726.60

Total Sewer - Equity Accounts 12,146,271.67 0.00 12,146,271.67
Water - Equity Accounts

Capital Assets Net 0.00 2,868,858.70 2,868,858.70
Restricted Debt Service 0.00 1,384,997.90 1,384,997.90
Unrestricted 0.00 -1,562,801.59 -1,562,801.59
Retained Earnings 0.00 -91,726.60 -91,726.60

Total Water - Equity Accounts 0.00 2,599,328.41 2,599,328.41
Equity Adjustment Account 6,157,821.04 11,582,832.08 17,740,653.12
Net Income -606,418.33 224,450.59 -381,967.74

Total Equity 17,697,674.38 14,406,611.08 32,104,285.46

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 20,139,211.36 22,415,154.28 42,554,365.64



Montara Water Sanitary District
Restricted and Non Restricted Cash Assets

July 2023 through June 2024

Target $ Over (Under) % Over/(Under)
YTD Cash Information July August September  October November December  January  February  March  April  May June Reserves  Targets  Targets

Sewer ‐ Operations

Wells Fargo Operating 4,799,718.26        4,795,076.61        4,295,441.35     

Sewer Reserve Accounts

LAIF
Capital Reserve  4,215,941.10        4,215,941.10        4,215,941.10      6,700,000.00       (2,484,058.90)       63%
Operating Reserve 524,507.00            524,507.00            524,507.00          2,813,414.00       (2,288,907.00)       19%

Subtotal 4,740,448.10        4,740,448.10        4,740,448.10     

Water Operations
Wells Fargo Operating 66,244.20              84,909.23              (355.14)               

Water ‐ Reserve Accounts
CAMP ‐ Reserve Funds

Capital Reserve 2,998,600.24        3,014,247.10        3,029,695.42      3,042,820.00       (28,572.90)             99%
Operating Reserve 339,579.00            339,579.00            441,252.33          1,133,508.00       (793,929.00)           30%

Subtotal 3,338,179.24        3,353,826.10        3,470,947.75     

Water ‐ Restricted Accounts
JP Morgan Chase ‐ Water

2020 GO Bond Fund 1,179,454.43        689,691.67            689,691.67         
Sub‐Total 1,179,454.43        689,691.67            689,691.67         

Total Cash and Equivalents 14,124,044.23      13,663,951.71      13,196,173.73   
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 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 ꞏ Cell Tower Lease 7,069.50 7,069.50 7,069.50 21,208.50 83,000.00 -61,791.50 25.55%

4400 ꞏ Fees
4410 ꞏ Administrative Fee (New Constr) 4,000.00 -4,000.00

4420 ꞏ Administrative Fee (Remodel) 1,000.00 -1,000.00

4430 ꞏ Inspection Fee (New Constr) 4,000.00 -4,000.00

4440 ꞏ Inspection Fee (Remodel) 1,000.00 -1,000.00

4460 ꞏ Remodel Fees 1,496.00 1,244.00 622.00 3,362.00 8,000.00 -4,638.00 42.03%

4470 ꞏ Other Fees 160.00 160.00

Total 4400 ꞏ Fees 1,656.00 1,244.00 622.00 3,522.00 18,000.00 -14,478.00 19.57%

4610 ꞏ Property Tax Receipts 102,896.55 286.44 103,182.99 300,000.00 -196,817.01 34.39%

4710 ꞏ Sewer Service Charges 2,950.88 1,352.45 4,303.33 3,883,231.00 -3,878,927.67 0.11%

4720 ꞏ Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -10,000.00 10,000.00

4760 ꞏ Waste Collection Revenues 1,227.28 3,786.17 1,351.59 6,365.04 30,000.00 -23,634.96 21.22%

4990 ꞏ Other Revenue 659.36 1,465.28 2,124.64

Total Income 12,903.66 117,008.03 10,794.81 140,706.50 4,304,231.00 -4,163,524.50 3.27%

Gross Profit 12,903.66 117,008.03 10,794.81 140,706.50 4,304,231.00 -4,163,524.50 3.27%

Expense
5000 ꞏ Administrative

5190 ꞏ Bank Fees 1,281.04 325.63 337.06 1,943.73 6,000.00 -4,056.27 32.4%

5200 ꞏ Board of Directors
5210 ꞏ Board Meetings 200.00 2,113.85 2,313.85 4,000.00 -1,686.15 57.85%

5220 ꞏ Director Fees 1,818.04 1,194.24 3,012.28 10,000.00 -6,987.72 30.12%

5230 ꞏ Election Expenses 7,500.00 7,500.00 15,000.00 -7,500.00 50.0%

Total 5200 ꞏ Board of Directors 2,018.04 10,808.09 12,826.13 29,000.00 -16,173.87 44.23%

5250 ꞏ Conference Attendance 415.00 337.50 392.53 1,145.03 10,000.00 -8,854.97 11.45%

5270 ꞏ Information Systems 779.88 1,355.25 2,135.13 6,000.00 -3,864.87 35.59%

5300 ꞏ Insurance
5310 ꞏ Fidelity Bond 500.00 -500.00

5320 ꞏ Property & Liability Insurance 12,109.75 12,109.75 10,000.00 2,109.75 121.1%

Total 5300 ꞏ Insurance 12,109.75 12,109.75 10,500.00 1,609.75 115.33%

5350 ꞏ LAFCO Assessment 3,000.00 -3,000.00

5400 ꞏ Legal
5430 ꞏ General Legal 8,598.00 17,231.15 25,829.15 200,000.00 -174,170.85 12.92%

5440 ꞏ Litigation 2,979.38 7,762.06 10,741.44

Total 5400 ꞏ Legal 11,577.38 24,993.21 36,570.59 200,000.00 -163,429.41 18.29%

5510 ꞏ Maintenance, Office 130.00 992.19 1,122.19 25,000.00 -23,877.81 4.49%

 Page 2 of 10 See Executive Summary Document
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Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5530 ꞏ Memberships 5,000.00 -5,000.00

5540 ꞏ Office Supplies 611.04 121.71 686.21 1,418.96 8,250.00 -6,831.04 17.2%

5550 ꞏ Postage 1,150.00 -1,150.00

5560 ꞏ Printing & Publishing 468.75 55.21 374.36 898.32 2,250.00 -1,351.68 39.93%

5600 ꞏ Professional Services
5610 ꞏ Accounting 3,650.00 3,927.50 7,577.50 39,000.00 -31,422.50 19.43%

5620 ꞏ Audit 2,500.00 2,500.00 13,500.00 -11,000.00 18.52%

5630 ꞏ Consulting 1,834.89 811.87 6,413.75 9,060.51 52,250.00 -43,189.49 17.34%

5640 ꞏ Data Services 1,199.50 9,213.23 10,412.73 10,000.00 412.73 104.13%

5650 ꞏ Labor & HR Support 427.00 213.50 640.50 2,500.00 -1,859.50 25.62%

5660 ꞏ Payroll Services 91.64 125.56 91.64 308.84 1,000.00 -691.16 30.88%

Total 5600 ꞏ Professional Services 7,203.03 14,078.16 9,218.89 30,500.08 118,250.00 -87,749.92 25.79%

5710 ꞏ San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 2,500.00 -2,500.00

5720 ꞏ Telephone & Internet 4,475.47 5,121.81 2,289.05 11,886.33 40,000.00 -28,113.67 29.72%

5730 ꞏ Mileage Reimbursement 2,000.00 -2,000.00

5740 ꞏ Reference Materials 200.00 -200.00

5790 ꞏ Other Adminstrative 337.66 337.66

5800 ꞏ Labor
5810 ꞏ CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 1,681.16 1,885.79 5,067.93 8,634.88 21,486.00 -12,851.12 40.19%

5820 ꞏ Employee Benefits 8,438.94 4,219.47 12,658.41 52,135.00 -39,476.59 24.28%

5830 ꞏ Disability Insurance 152.55 152.55 152.55 457.65 2,271.00 -1,813.35 20.15%

5840 ꞏ Payroll Taxes 1,912.24 2,160.35 1,803.49 5,876.08 22,147.00 -16,270.92 26.53%

5850 ꞏ PARS 1,738.30 1,837.33 1,389.08 4,964.71 4,964.71 100.0%

5900 ꞏ Wages
5910 ꞏ Management 9,567.78 9,567.78 21,271.59 40,407.15 122,617.00 -82,209.85 32.95%

5920 ꞏ Staff 15,224.71 16,901.35 15,741.43 47,867.49 205,767.00 -157,899.51 23.26%

5930 ꞏ Staff Certification 175.00 175.00 175.00 525.00 1,800.00 -1,275.00 29.17%

5940 ꞏ Staff Overtime 29.42 941.52 804.21 1,775.15 1,754.00 21.15 101.21%

5950 ꞏ Staff Standby 654.55 654.55

Total 5900 ꞏ Wages 24,996.91 28,240.20 37,992.23 91,229.34 331,938.00 -240,708.66 27.48%

5960 ꞏ Worker's Comp Insurance 2,913.00 -2,913.00

Total 5800 ꞏ Labor 38,920.10 34,276.22 50,624.75 123,821.07 432,890.00 -309,068.93 28.6%

Total 5000 ꞏ Administrative 77,191.56 57,114.16 102,409.25 236,714.97 901,990.00 -665,275.03 26.24%

6000 ꞏ Operations
6170 ꞏ Claims, Property Damage 10,000.00 -10,000.00

6195 ꞏ Education & Training 2,000.00 -2,000.00

6200 ꞏ Engineering
6220 ꞏ General Engineering 2,962.50 917.50 2,508.00 6,388.00 70,000.00 -63,612.00 9.13%

 Page 3 of 10 See Executive Summary Document
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Total 6200 ꞏ Engineering 2,962.50 917.50 2,508.00 6,388.00 70,000.00 -63,612.00 9.13%

6330 ꞏ Facilities
6335 ꞏ Alarm Services 690.60 430.08 560.82 1,681.50 6,000.00 -4,318.50 28.03%

6337 ꞏ Landscaping 6,000.00 -6,000.00

Total 6330 ꞏ Facilities 690.60 430.08 560.82 1,681.50 12,000.00 -10,318.50 14.01%

6400 ꞏ Pumping
6410 ꞏ Pumping Fuel & Electricity 3,549.85 3,553.27 3,590.30 10,693.42 50,000.00 -39,306.58 21.39%

6420 ꞏ Pumping Maintenance, Generators 2,260.00 1,885.46 1,885.46 6,030.92 15,000.00 -8,969.08 40.21%

Total 6400 ꞏ Pumping 5,809.85 5,438.73 5,475.76 16,724.34 65,000.00 -48,275.66 25.73%

6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission
6660 ꞏ Maintenance, Collection System 10,000.00 -10,000.00

Total 6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission 10,000.00 -10,000.00

6770 ꞏ Uniforms 200.00 -200.00

6800 ꞏ Vehicles
6810 ꞏ Fuel 203.38 229.19 205.45 638.02 2,000.00 -1,361.98 31.9%

6820 ꞏ Truck Equipment, Expensed 202.73 41.52 244.25 200.00 44.25 122.13%

6830 ꞏ Truck Repairs 31.08 31.08 1,000.00 -968.92 3.11%

Total 6800 ꞏ Vehicles 437.19 270.71 205.45 913.35 3,200.00 -2,286.65 28.54%

6900 ꞏ Sewer Authority Midcoastside
6910 ꞏ SAM Collections 24,571.83 24,571.83 24,571.83 73,715.49 294,862.00 -221,146.51 25.0%

6920 ꞏ SAM Operations 118,801.91 118,801.91 118,951.91 356,555.73 1,806,452.00 -1,449,896.27 19.74%

6940 ꞏ SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 45,000.00 -45,000.00

6950 ꞏ SAM Maintenance, Pumping 13,861.24 2,211.68 16,072.92 130,000.00 -113,927.08 12.36%

Total 6900 ꞏ Sewer Authority Midcoastside 143,373.74 157,234.98 145,735.42 446,344.14 2,276,314.00 -1,829,969.86 19.61%

Total 6000 ꞏ Operations 153,273.88 164,292.00 154,485.45 472,051.33 2,448,714.00 -1,976,662.67 19.28%

Total Expense 230,465.44 221,406.16 256,894.70 708,766.30 3,350,704.00 -2,641,937.70 21.15%

Net Ordinary Income -217,561.78 -104,398.13 -246,099.89 -568,059.80 953,527.00 -1,521,586.80 -59.58%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues
7100 ꞏ Connection Fees

7110 ꞏ Connection Fees (New Constr) 65,222.00 65,222.00 220,000.00 -154,778.00 29.65%

7120 ꞏ Connection Fees (Remodel) 55,000.00 -55,000.00

7152 ꞏ Connection Fee Refunds -20,000.00 20,000.00

7153 ꞏ Add'l Fixture Units (New Const) 6,705.00 9,657.00 16,362.00 20,000.00 -3,638.00 81.81%

7155 ꞏ Add'l Fixture Units (Remodel) 8,154.00 17,595.00 25,749.00 20,000.00 5,749.00 128.75%

Total 7100 ꞏ Connection Fees 71,927.00 17,811.00 17,595.00 107,333.00 295,000.00 -187,667.00 36.38%

7200 ꞏ Interest Income - LAIF 36,929.21 36,929.21 60,000.00 -23,070.79 61.55%
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 2:22 PM
 10/19/23
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues 108,856.21 17,811.00 17,595.00 144,262.21 355,000.00 -210,737.79 40.64%

Total Other Income 108,856.21 17,811.00 17,595.00 144,262.21 355,000.00 -210,737.79 40.64%

Other Expense
8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program

8075 ꞏ Sewer 16,731.70 81,261.36 81,355.19 179,348.25 3,999,285.00 -3,819,936.75 4.49%

Total 8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program 16,731.70 81,261.36 81,355.19 179,348.25 3,999,285.00 -3,819,936.75 4.49%

9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses
9125 ꞏ PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,015.55 655.59 1,671.14 7,176.00 -5,504.86 23.29%

9200 ꞏ I-Bank Loan 1,601.35 1,601.35 18,702.00 -17,100.65 8.56%

Total 9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses 2,616.90 655.59 3,272.49 25,878.00 -22,605.51 12.65%

Total Other Expense 19,348.60 81,261.36 82,010.78 182,620.74 4,025,163.00 -3,842,542.26 4.54%

Net Other Income 89,507.61 -63,450.36 -64,415.78 -38,358.53 -3,670,163.00 3,631,804.47 1.05%
Net Income -128,054.17 -167,848.49 -310,515.67 -606,418.33 -2,716,636.00 2,110,217.67 22.32%
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 10/19/23
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4400 ꞏ Fees
4410 ꞏ Administrative Fee (New Constr) 4,000.00 -4,000.00

4420 ꞏ Administrative Fee (Remodel) 600.00 -600.00

4430 ꞏ Inspection Fee (New Constr) 4,000.00 -4,000.00

4440 ꞏ Inspection Fee (Remodel)
4450 ꞏ Mainline Extension Fees
4470 ꞏ Other Fees 160.00 160.00

Total 4400 ꞏ Fees 160.00 160.00 8,600.00 -8,440.00 1.86%

4610 ꞏ Property Tax Receipts -0.01 102,896.55 286.43 103,182.97 300,000.00 -196,817.03 34.39%

4740 ꞏ Testing, Backflow 1,486.00 1,496.00 2,176.00 5,158.00 18,000.00 -12,842.00 28.66%

4760 ꞏ Waste Collection Revenues
4810 ꞏ Water Sales, Domestic 142,714.49 205,441.91 156,717.66 504,874.06 2,014,000.00 -1,509,125.94 25.07%

4850 ꞏ Water Sales Refunds, Customer -8,000.00 8,000.00

4990 ꞏ Other Revenue 18.02 659.35 1,465.27 2,142.64

Total Income 144,378.50 310,493.81 160,645.36 615,517.67 2,332,600.00 -1,717,082.33 26.39%

Gross Profit 144,378.50 310,493.81 160,645.36 615,517.67 2,332,600.00 -1,717,082.33 26.39%

Expense
5000 ꞏ Administrative

5190 ꞏ Bank Fees 1,281.04 325.63 337.05 1,943.72 5,500.00 -3,556.28 35.34%

5200 ꞏ Board of Directors
5210 ꞏ Board Meetings 200.00 2,113.85 2,313.85 4,000.00 -1,686.15 57.85%

5220 ꞏ Director Fees 1,818.03 1,194.24 3,012.27 10,000.00 -6,987.73 30.12%

5230 ꞏ Election Expenses 7,500.00 7,500.00 15,000.00 -7,500.00 50.0%

Total 5200 ꞏ Board of Directors 2,018.03 10,808.09 12,826.12 29,000.00 -16,173.88 44.23%

5240 ꞏ CDPH Fees 18,000.00 -18,000.00

5250 ꞏ Conference Attendance 415.00 337.50 1,048.49 1,800.99 15,000.00 -13,199.01 12.01%

5270 ꞏ Information Systems 779.87 1,355.25 2,135.12 6,500.00 -4,364.88 32.85%

5300 ꞏ Insurance
5310 ꞏ Fidelity Bond 500.00 -500.00

5320 ꞏ Property & Liability Insurance 13,159.75 13,159.75 10,000.00 3,159.75 131.6%

Total 5300 ꞏ Insurance 13,159.75 13,159.75 10,500.00 2,659.75 125.33%

5350 ꞏ LAFCO Assessment 3,000.00 -3,000.00

5400 ꞏ Legal
5430 ꞏ General Legal 8,598.00 17,211.16 25,809.16 75,000.00 -49,190.84 34.41%

5440 ꞏ Litigation 208.00 544.00 752.00

Total 5400 ꞏ Legal 8,806.00 17,755.16 26,561.16 75,000.00 -48,438.84 35.42%
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 2:27 PM
 10/19/23
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5510 ꞏ Maintenance, Office 139.34 1,262.23 1,401.57 25,000.00 -23,598.43 5.61%

5530 ꞏ Memberships 25,000.00 -25,000.00

5540 ꞏ Office Supplies 611.03 121.71 686.18 1,418.92 6,250.00 -4,831.08 22.7%

5550 ꞏ Postage 1,589.08 2,283.68 3,872.76 14,750.00 -10,877.24 26.26%

5560 ꞏ Printing & Publishing 530.95 779.62 1,604.22 2,914.79 5,750.00 -2,835.21 50.69%

5600 ꞏ Professional Services
5610 ꞏ Accounting 3,650.00 3,927.50 7,577.50 39,000.00 -31,422.50 19.43%

5620 ꞏ Audit 2,500.00 2,500.00 13,500.00 -11,000.00 18.52%

5630 ꞏ Consulting 1,834.88 811.88 6,413.75 9,060.51 67,250.00 -58,189.49 13.47%

5640 ꞏ Data Services 1,199.50 1,199.50 1,000.00 199.50 119.95%

5650 ꞏ Labor & HR Support 427.00 213.50 640.50 2,500.00 -1,859.50 25.62%

5660 ꞏ Payroll Services 91.66 125.58 91.66 308.90 1,000.00 -691.10 30.89%

Total 5600 ꞏ Professional Services 7,203.04 4,864.96 9,218.91 21,286.91 124,250.00 -102,963.09 17.13%

5710 ꞏ San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 2,500.00 -2,500.00

5720 ꞏ Telephone & Internet 4,834.41 5,850.00 2,997.09 13,681.50 50,000.00 -36,318.50 27.36%

5730 ꞏ Mileage Reimbursement 282.85 282.85 2,000.00 -1,717.15 14.14%

5740 ꞏ Reference Materials 500.00 -500.00

5790 ꞏ Other Adminstrative 320.84 2,773.21 337.66 3,431.71

5800 ꞏ Labor
5810 ꞏ CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 4,078.38 4,456.34 7,647.51 16,182.23 51,461.00 -35,278.77 31.45%

5820 ꞏ Employee Benefits 22,675.89 12,565.44 35,241.33 155,291.00 -120,049.67 22.69%

5830 ꞏ Disability Insurance 329.39 329.39 329.39 988.17 5,572.00 -4,583.83 17.74%

5840 ꞏ Payroll Taxes 4,563.59 4,982.88 4,656.38 14,202.85 59,514.00 -45,311.15 23.87%

5850 ꞏ PARS 3,731.96 4,020.87 3,427.57 11,180.40 47,101.00 -35,920.60 23.74%

5900 ꞏ Wages
5910 ꞏ Management 9,567.80 9,567.80 21,271.61 40,407.21 122,617.00 -82,209.79 32.95%

5920 ꞏ Staff 42,121.16 46,357.89 42,735.32 131,214.37 554,440.00 -423,225.63 23.67%

5930 ꞏ Staff Certification 775.00 925.00 925.00 2,625.00 11,400.00 -8,775.00 23.03%

5940 ꞏ Staff Overtime 4,349.89 4,430.67 7,494.35 16,274.91 60,420.00 -44,145.09 26.94%

5950 ꞏ Staff Standby 2,840.75 3,854.13 2,858.70 9,553.58 29,086.00 -19,532.42 32.85%

Total 5900 ꞏ Wages 59,654.60 65,135.49 75,284.98 200,075.07 777,963.00 -577,887.93 25.72%

5960 ꞏ Worker's Comp Insurance 24,413.00 -24,413.00

Total 5800 ꞏ Labor 95,033.81 78,924.97 103,911.27 277,870.05 1,121,315.00 -843,444.95 24.78%

Total 5000 ꞏ Administrative 134,207.14 99,059.18 151,321.60 384,587.92 1,539,815.00 -1,155,227.08 24.98%

6000 ꞏ Operations
6160 ꞏ Backflow Prevention 1,000.00 -1,000.00

6170 ꞏ Claims, Property Damage 393.15 393.15 10,000.00 -9,606.85 3.93%

6180 ꞏ Communications
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 2:27 PM
 10/19/23
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6185 ꞏ SCADA Maintenance 20,000.00 -20,000.00

Total 6180 ꞏ Communications 20,000.00 -20,000.00

6195 ꞏ Education & Training 125.00 39.99 164.99 5,000.00 -4,835.01 3.3%

6200 ꞏ Engineering
6220 ꞏ General Engineering 825.00 825.00 10,000.00 -9,175.00 8.25%

6230 ꞏ Water Quality Engineering 9,085.00 5,165.00 14,250.00 115,000.00 -100,750.00 12.39%

Total 6200 ꞏ Engineering 9,910.00 5,165.00 15,075.00 125,000.00 -109,925.00 12.06%

6320 ꞏ Equipment & Tools, Expensed 600.97 1,363.48 309.93 2,274.38 10,000.00 -7,725.62 22.74%

6330 ꞏ Facilities
6335 ꞏ Alarm Services 260.52 130.74 391.26 2,000.00 -1,608.74 19.56%

6337 ꞏ Landscaping 860.00 1,065.00 1,925.00 15,000.00 -13,075.00 12.83%

6330 ꞏ Facilities - Other

Total 6330 ꞏ Facilities 1,120.52 1,195.74 2,316.26 17,000.00 -14,683.74 13.63%

6370 ꞏ Lab Supplies & Equipment 5,642.00 157.51 5,799.51 4,000.00 1,799.51 144.99%

6380 ꞏ Meter Reading 500.00 -500.00

6400 ꞏ Pumping
6410 ꞏ Pumping Fuel & Electricity 5,171.86 8,046.47 8,298.03 21,516.36 95,000.00 -73,483.64 22.65%

6420 ꞏ Pumping Maintenance, Generators 2,260.00 2,260.00 30,000.00 -27,740.00 7.53%

6430 ꞏ Pumping Maintenance, General 874.29 874.29 5,000.00 -4,125.71 17.49%

6440 ꞏ Pumping Equipment, Expensed 700.00 -700.00

Total 6400 ꞏ Pumping 7,431.86 8,920.76 8,298.03 24,650.65 130,700.00 -106,049.35 18.86%

6500 ꞏ Supply
6510 ꞏ Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 2,500.00 -2,500.00

6520 ꞏ Maintenance, Wells 1,082.80 941.29 2,024.09 25,000.00 -22,975.91 8.1%

6530 ꞏ Water Purchases 30,000.00 -30,000.00

Total 6500 ꞏ Supply 1,082.80 941.29 2,024.09 57,500.00 -55,475.91 3.52%

6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission
6610 ꞏ Hydrants 10,000.00 -10,000.00

6620 ꞏ Maintenance, Water Mains 16,022.90 8,107.37 24,130.27 170,000.00 -145,869.73 14.19%

6630 ꞏ Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 2,127.00 2,127.00 20,000.00 -17,873.00 10.64%

6640 ꞏ Maintenance, Tanks 36.32 36.32 5,000.00 -4,963.68 0.73%

6650 ꞏ Maint., Distribution General 1,443.75 1,443.75 15,000.00 -13,556.25 9.63%

6670 ꞏ Meters 7,832.87 114.06 7,946.93 30,000.00 -22,053.07 26.49%

Total 6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission 27,426.52 8,257.75 35,684.27 250,000.00 -214,315.73 14.27%

6700 ꞏ Treatment
6710 ꞏ Chemicals & Filtering 7,646.01 7,646.01 25,000.00 -17,353.99 30.58%

6720 ꞏ Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 206.57 3,398.80 3,605.37 15,000.00 -11,394.63 24.04%

6730 ꞏ Treatment Analysis 283.15 2,479.00 7,568.68 10,330.83 35,000.00 -24,669.17 29.52%
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 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2023 through June 2024
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Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 6700 ꞏ Treatment 283.15 10,331.58 10,967.48 21,582.21 75,000.00 -53,417.79 28.78%

6770 ꞏ Uniforms 834.88 216.66 418.17 1,469.71 2,500.00 -1,030.29 58.79%

6800 ꞏ Vehicles
6810 ꞏ Fuel 610.11 687.57 616.38 1,914.06 12,000.00 -10,085.94 15.95%

6820 ꞏ Truck Equipment, Expensed 608.19 124.55 732.74 2,000.00 -1,267.26 36.64%

6830 ꞏ Truck Repairs 93.23 93.23 5,000.00 -4,906.77 1.87%

Total 6800 ꞏ Vehicles 1,311.53 812.12 616.38 2,740.03 19,000.00 -16,259.97 14.42%

6890 ꞏ Other Operations 40.46 95.16 135.62

Total 6000 ꞏ Operations 22,616.17 61,432.72 30,260.98 114,309.87 727,200.00 -612,890.13 15.72%

Total Expense 156,823.31 160,491.90 181,582.58 498,897.79 2,267,015.00 -1,768,117.21 22.01%

Net Ordinary Income -12,444.81 150,001.91 -20,937.22 116,619.88 65,585.00 51,034.88 177.82%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues
7100 ꞏ Connection Fees

7110 ꞏ Connection Fees (New Constr) 52,196.00 8,121.58 60,317.58 185,000.00 -124,682.42 32.6%

7120 ꞏ Connection Fees (Remodel) 5,732.88 5,732.88

7130 ꞏ Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 37,299.00 24,413.50 61,712.50 55,000.00 6,712.50 112.21%

7160 ꞏ PFP Pass Thru
7165 ꞏ Meter Pass Thru Costs 2,624.50 1,375.50 260.50 4,260.50

Total 7100 ꞏ Connection Fees 92,119.50 31,521.88 8,382.08 132,023.46 240,000.00 -107,976.54 55.01%

7250 ꞏ CAMP Interest Income 14,999.34 15,646.86 15,448.32 46,094.52 60,000.00 -13,905.48 76.82%

7600 ꞏ Bond Revenues, G.O. 1,195,381.00 -1,195,381.00

7650 ꞏ Water System Reliability 1,480.45 814.22 2,294.67 1,111,460.00 -1,109,165.33 0.21%

Total 7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues 108,599.29 47,982.96 23,830.40 180,412.65 2,606,841.00 -2,426,428.35 6.92%

Total Other Income 108,599.29 47,982.96 23,830.40 180,412.65 2,606,841.00 -2,426,428.35 6.92%

Other Expense
8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program

8100 ꞏ Water 11,518.75 48,683.25 5,591.25 65,793.25 3,865,000.00 -3,799,206.75 1.7%

Total 8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program 11,518.75 48,683.25 5,591.25 65,793.25 3,865,000.00 -3,799,206.75 1.7%

9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses
9100 ꞏ Interest Expense - GO Bonds 4,967.53 4,967.53 56,977.00 -52,009.47 8.72%

9125 ꞏ PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,015.56 655.60 1,671.16 7,176.00 -5,504.84 23.29%

9150 ꞏ SRF Loan 56,457.00 -56,457.00

9210 ꞏ Conservation Program/Rebates 150.00 150.00 150.00 100.0%

Total 9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses 1,015.56 5,117.53 655.60 6,788.69 120,610.00 -113,821.31 5.63%

Total Other Expense 12,534.31 53,800.78 6,246.85 72,581.94 3,985,610.00 -3,913,028.06 1.82%

Net Other Income 96,064.98 -5,817.82 17,583.55 107,830.71 -1,378,769.00 1,486,599.71 -7.82%
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 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2023 through June 2024

TOTAL

Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Net Income 83,620.17 144,184.09 -3,353.67 224,450.59 -1,313,184.00 1,537,634.59 -17.09%
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY   
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 

TO:    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: SAM Flow Report for September 2023 

The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) has not approved the September 
flows to date. The report will be submitted to this board in a subsequent meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

For information only 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of: November 2, 2023 

 
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

 
  

SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio 

 
 
The District’s Investment Policy and Guidelines requires that the Board review 
the status of the current investment portfolio. The following summarizes the 
status of these accounts: 
 

 The District has most of its idle sewer funds deposited in the State 
of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Monthly 
Average interest rate for September 2023 was 3.534%. 
 

 The District has most of its idle water funds deposited in the 
California Asset Management Program (CAMP). The current 7 
day yield for 10/27/23 was 5.55%. 

 
  

 

 The District has one checking account with Wells Fargo Bank for 
Water and Sewer Funds that is largely backed by Federal securities. 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
District staff attempts to cash manage idle funds in LAIF as long as possible 
before transferring to the Wells Fargo checking accounts for disbursements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of November 2nd, 2023

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Production Report 

The attached two charts summarize the monthly water production for 
the District. 
The first shows a consolidated from all sources by month.  The 
second shows each water source the District uses, both wells and 
surface water.  The production is shown in gallons of water produced. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s information 
only.  

Attachments: 2 
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting of November 2nd, 2023 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Rain Report 

The attached chart shows the monthly rainfall at Alta Vista Treatment 
Plant for the current and prior water years along with seven-year 
average rain fall. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 2 



Monthly Cumulative Rainfall  

 



Annual Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: November 2nd, 2023

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Solar Energy Report 

The attached chart summarizes the monthly solar production at 
the Alta Vista Array.  Since the installation of the solar panels 
the District produced 50,749 kWh and saved  86,273 lbs of CO2.

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  This information is provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 1 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
total kWh 129 111 147 232 181 159 210 180 159
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of November 2, 2023 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Public Agency Retirement 
Service Report for August 2023. 

The District has received the monthly PARS report for August 2023. 

Contributions are calculated on a bi-weekly basis, and contributions are made on 
a monthly basis.  

The following monthly reports are submitted as consent agenda items on a 
monthly basis. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 This is for Board information only. 

Attachment 





August 2023
PARS Statement Detail 

PARS beginning Balance as of August 1, 2023 1,429,518.30$  

Contributions:

July 15, 2023 Calculation Sewer Water  Total

Wages paid 36,138.99         11,567.10      24,571.90        36,138.99    
Employer ‐ 7.30% 2,638.15$          844.40            1,793.75           2,638.15       
Employee ‐ 7.75% 2,800.77$         
Contribution subtotal 5,438.92$          

July 31, 2023 Calculation Sewer Water  Total

Wages paid 38,796.11         12,245.42      26,550.70        38,796.11    
Employer ‐ 7.30% 2,832.12$          893.92            1,938.20           2,832.12       
Employee ‐ 7.75% 3,006.70$         
Contribution Subtotal 5,838.81$          

Total Contributions thru July 11,277.73$       

Rounding

Earnings/(Losses) (31,486.88)$      

Expenses (649.36)$            

Distributions (1,162.26)$        

PARS Ending Balance as of August 31, 2023 1,407,497.53$  

Fund Impact ‐ PARS Wages

Fund Impact ‐ PARS Wages



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:    
 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Receipt 
of Fiscal Year 2022-23 Audit 

 

 
Cropper Accountancy completed the audit for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023. 
Bryce Rojas, Audit Partner, will be making a presentation on the audit and be 
available to answer any questions from the Board. 
 
The District’s accountant, Peter Medina, is also available to answer questions 
and discuss the audit process.  
 
After review of the audit, the Board should acknowledge receipt and file with 
County, State, Standard & Poor’s, I-Bank and Chase Bank. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Acknowledge receipt of the annual audit for the period ending June 30, 2023. 
Direct the General Manager to send a copy to the County of San Mateo, The 
State Controller, Standard & Poor’s, post on the District webpage and to make 
copies on file available to the public. 
 
Attachment: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Board of Directors 
Montara Water and Sanitary District 
Montara, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, of the Montara 
Water and Sanitary District,  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Montara Water and Sanitary District’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Montara Water and Sanitary District, 
as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof  for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are required to be independent of the Montara Water and Sanitary District and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 270
Walnut Creek, CA 94598

(925) 932-3860 tel
(925) 476-9930 efax
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Montara Water and Sanitary District’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Montara Water and Sanitary District’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of 
Plan Contributions on pages 5-9, 34, and 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15, 
2023, on our consideration of the Montara Water and Sanitary District’s internal control over financial 
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2023

Our discussion and analysis of the Montara Water and Sanitary District’s (District) nancial performance provides
an overview of the District’s nancial ac vi es for the scal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read it in
conjunc on with the District nancial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this sec on.

Highlights

District Financial Highlights

• The District’s current assets increased by $2,078,538 over the past year.

• The District’s long term liabili es decreased by $1,241,800.

• District wide revenues decreased $40,119 from the prior year going from $9,571,841 to $9,531,722.

• District wide expenses increased $625,958 from the prior year going from $6,303,164 to $6,929,122.

The e ect of the change in revenues and expenses and the prior period adjustment caused the District wide
change in net posi on to increase $2,749,623 from the prior year. Some of the increase was invested in capital
assets while some of the increase cause the unrestricted net posi on for the year ended June 30, 2023, to increase
by $1,780,455.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more detail the informa on contained in those statements.

Required Financial Statements

District nancial statements report informa on about the District using accoun ng methods similar to those used
by private sector companies. The Statement of Net Posi on includes all District assets, deferred ou lows of
resources, liabili es and deferred in ows of resources and provides informa on about the nature and amounts of
investments in resources (assets) and obliga ons to creditors (liabili es). It also provides the basis for compu ng
rate of return; evalua ng the capital structure of the District; and assessing the liquidity and nancial exibility of
the District. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Posi on. This statement measures the success of the District opera ons over the
past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through its
user fees and other charges, pro tability, and credit worthiness. The nal required nancial statement is the
Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this statement is to provide informa on about District cash
receipts, cash disbursements and changes in cash resul ng from opera ons, inves ng, and capital and non capital
nancing ac vi es. It provides answers to such ques ons as, “Where did the cash come from?”, “For what was the

cash used?”, and “What was the change in cash balance during the repor ng period?”.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important ques ons asked about District nances is whether or not the District’s overall nancial
posi on has improved or deteriorated. The Statement of Net Posi on and the Statement of Revenues and
Expenses and Changes in Net Posi on report informa on about District ac vi es in a way that will help answer
this ques on. These two statements report the net posi on of the District and changes. You can think of District
net posi on, the di erence between assets, deferred ou lows of resources, liabili es and deferred in ows of
resources, as oneway tomeasure nancial health or nancial posi on. Over me, increases or decreases in District
net posi on are one indicator of whether its nancial health is improving or deteriora ng. Other factors to consider
include changes in economic condi ons, popula on growth, and new or changed legisla on.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2023

Net Posi on Statement and Analysis

The District’s total net posi on increased from $29,855,317 to $32,604,940, or $2,749,623.

The following is the District’s condensed statement of net posi on:

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Posi on

For the scal year ended June 30, 2023 the sewer system generated opera ng revenue of $3,847,501 and opera ng
expenses of $3,537,908 for a net opera ng gain of $309,593. This is an increase from prior year’s net opera ng
gain of $302,663 by $6,930. Whereas opera ng revenue increased 5.6%. The revenue increase is a ributed to the
Sewer Service rate increase for FY 22 23 of 9%. As discussed in our proposi on 218 le er, the addi onal funds are
used to support opera ons and improve our infrastructure.

The Sewer Funds non opera ng ac vi es consis ng of property taxes, investment income, connec on fees and
revenue from the lease of the cell phone tower experienced a decrease of $56,065 mainly due to connec on fee
revenue decreasing by approximately $135,500. Fortunately, due to the rise of interest rates, investment income
increased by $72,000.

For the scal year ended June 30, 2023 thewater system generated opera ng revenue of $1,816,586 and opera ng
expenses of $3,229,513 for a net opera ng loss of $1,412,927. This is an increase from prior year’s net opera ng
loss of $900,122 by $512,805. For the scal year ended June 30, 2023 opera ng revenue decreased 3% and
opera ng expense increased by $449,992. The decrease in revenue is due to the decrease in water consump on.
Opera onal expenditures increased due to the cost of replacement for meters which have been failing as well as
an increase in employee wages.

The Water Funds non opera ng ac vi es revenues, consis ng of property taxes, investment income and
connec on fees experienced a decrease of $104,137 a ributed mainly to the reduc on in connec on fees
collected which reduced by $234,966. As with the Sewer Fund, investment income increased by $111,254.

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Current Assets 10,144,574$ 8,970,184$ 5,347,215$ 4,443,067$ 15,491,789$ 13,413,251$
Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 10,799,833 10,742,962 16,119,768 16,519,401 26,919,601 27,262,363
Other Assets 70,666 210,832 1,158,394 1,261,814 1,229,060 1,472,646
Total Assets 21,015,073 19,923,978 22,625,377 22,224,282 43,640,450 42,148,260

Deferred Outflows of Resources 113,218 93,759 252,003 208,689 365,221 302,448
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 21,128,291 20,017,737 22,877,380 22,432,971 44,005,671 42,450,708

Current Liabilities 1,788,580 1,856,014 1,703,459 1,361,161 3,492,039 3,217,175
Long term Liabilities 837,798 928,438 6,901,284 8,052,444 7,739,082 8,980,882
Total Liabilities 2,626,378 2,784,452 8,604,743 9,413,605 11,231,121 12,198,057

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred 150,211 275,888 19,399 121,446 169,610 397,334
Inflows of Resources 2,776,589 3,060,340 8,624,142 9,535,051 11,400,731 12,595,391

Net investment in Capital Assets 9,890,227 9,726,525 8,093,058 7,322,008 17,983,285 17,048,533
Restricted for Debt Service 1,158,394 1,123,978 1,158,394 1,123,978
Unrestricted 8,461,475 7,230,872 5,001,786 4,451,934 13,463,261 11,682,806
Total Net Position 18,351,702$ 16,957,397$ 14,253,238$ 12,897,920$ 32,604,940$ 29,855,317$

Sewer Water Total
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2023

For the scal year ended June 30, 2023, the District collected $1,026,086 in water reliability charges, a decrease of
$1,613 over the previous scal year. The funds are held separately and u lized for capital improvement projects.
The District also receives property tax revenue which was imposed speci cally for payment of the General
Obliga on Bonds approved by the District rate payers. These revenues decreased by $2,508. This is due to the
District re nancing the 2012 series in 2020 at a lower interest rate.

Connec on fees and other non opera ng revenue for the Sewer Fund decreased from $410,101 to $274,534
whereas the connec on fees and other non opera ng revenue for the Water Fund decreased from $3,023,260 to
$2,901,296. These funds are used to o set capital needs for exis ng customers. This amount is expected to rise
in the upcoming years as the moratorium on connec ons for residents within the District’s service area has been
repealed.

The following is the District’s condensed statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net posi on:

Capital Assets and Debt Administra on

Capital Assets

At the end of scal year 2023, the District had $26,919,601 (net of accumulated deprecia on) invested in a variety
of capital assets.

The assets include: land; capacity rights, sanitary sewer collec on system subsurface lines and pump sta ons;
water supply wells; surface water diversion and storage tank; water treatment plant; treated water storage tanks;
water distribu on system subsurface lines, valves, hydrants, and pumps; administra on building; and vehicles. The
District’s capital assets balance as of June 30, 2023, decreased by $342,762 or 1.3% above the prior year. This is
due to capitalized expenses in regard to the District’s Water and Sewer facili es plant and other capital
improvements reduced by current year deprecia on expense.

Major capital assets events during the scal year included the following:

• Capital improvements to the water system

• Sewer pipeline replacement

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Operating Revenues 3,847,501$ 3,643,162$ 1,816,586$ 1,879,399$ 5,664,087$ 5,522,561$
Tax Revenues 526,690 516,916 1,539,245 1,531,980 2,065,935 2,048,896
Interest and Investment Income 85,304 12,868 113,063 1,809 198,367 14,677
Connection Fees and Other Non
Operating Revenues 354,345 496,236 1,248,988 1,489,471 1,603,333 1,985,707
Total Revenues 4,813,840 4,669,182 4,717,882 4,902,659 9,531,722 9,571,841

Operating Expenses 3,537,908 3,340,499 3,229,513 2,779,521 6,767,421 6,120,020
Non operating Expenses 28,650 32,266 133,051 150,878 161,701 183,144
Total Expenses 3,566,558 3,372,765 3,362,564 2,930,399 6,929,122 6,303,164

Change in Fund Net Position 1,247,282 1,296,417 1,355,318 1,972,260 2,602,600 3,268,677
Fund Net Position Beginning,
as restated 17,104,420 15,660,980 12,897,920 10,925,660 30,002,340 26,586,640
Total Net Position 18,351,702$ 16,957,397$ 14,253,238$ 12,897,920$ 32,604,940$ 29,855,317$

Sewer Water Total
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2023

The following summarizes District capital assets for scal year ended June 30, 2023:

Addi onal informa on on capital assets can be found in notes #1F and #4 to the nancial statements of this report.

Long Term Obliga ons

On November 13, 2020, the District issued General Obliga on Bonds Series 2020 in the amount of $7,524,000.
The bonds were issued to fully re nance the General Obliga on Bonds Series 2012 and to nance improvements
to the District’s water system.

The District entered into a nance purchase agreement for approximately $1.8 million in October of 2006, to
nance the acquisi on of capital assets for the water opera ons. The nancing was originally provided by Ci bank

at a rate of 4.56% for a 20 year term and is now held by PNC Equipment Finance (PNCEF). E ec veMarch 15, 2013,
the District re nanced the Ci bank agreement with PNCEF at a rate of 2.95%.

On July 10, 2012, the District entered into an agreement with the State of California Department of Health under
the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Law of 1947. This agreement cons tutes funding in the form of a
loan and a grant made by the State to the District. The purpose of the funding is to assist in nancing the cost of
studies, planning and other preliminary ac vi es for a project which will enable the District to meet safe drinking
water standards.

Balance
June 30, 2022 Additions Deletions

Balance
June 30, 2023

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land and easement 739,500$ $ $ 739,500$
Capacity rights 2,687,547 2,687,547
Total capital assets not being
depreciatied 3,427,047 3,427,047

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Sewage collection facilities 5,340,307 5,340,307
Sewage treatment facilities 244,540 244,540
General plant and administration
facilities 8,552,710 596,688 9,149,398
Seal cove collection system 995,505 995,505
Other capital improvements 4,357,566 4,357,566
Water facilities plant 28,768,953 609,186 29,378,139
Water general plant 409,584 409,584
Surface water rights 300,000 300,000
Total capital assets being
depreciatied 48,969,165 1,205,874 50,175,039

Accumlated depreciation (25,133,849) (1,548,636) (26,682,485)
Net Captial Assets Being Depreciated 23,835,316 (342,762) 23,492,554
Property Plant and Equipment, Net 27,262,363$ (342,762)$ $ 26,919,601$
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2023

The following is a summary of long term obliga ons ac vity for the year:

Addi onal informa on on the long term obliga ons can be found in Note 6 of the notes to the nancial statements
of this report.

Economic Factors, Rates, and Budgetary Control

The District is a California Special District including a sewer and water enterprise fund. As a Special District, charges
to customers are made only to those who receive services. The District is not typically subject to general economic
condi ons such as increases or declines in property tax values or other types of revenues that vary with economic
condi ons such as sales taxes. However, it does receive property tax which is dependent on property tax
valua ons. Accordingly, the District sets its rates to its users to cover the costs of opera on, maintenance and
recurring capital replacement and debt nanced capital improvements, plus any increments for known or
an cipated changes in program costs.

The District and its Board adopt an annual budget to serve as its approved nancial plan. The Board sets all fees
and charges required to fund the District’s opera ons and capital programs. The budget is used as a key control
device (1) to ensure Board approval for amounts set for opera ons and capital projects, (2) to monitor expenses
and project progress and (3) as compliance that approved spending levels have not been exceeded. All opera ng
ac vi es and capital ac vi es of the District are included within the approved budget. The budget and capital
expenditures are within the Gann limits established by State law.

Request for Informa on

This nancial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of District nances,
and demonstrate District accountability for the money it receives. If you have any ques ons about this report, or
need addi onal nancial informa on, contact the General Manager at 8888 Cabrillo Highway, Montara, CA 94037
or (650) 728 3545.

Balance
June 30, 2022 Additions Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023

Current
Portion

Long Term
Portion

General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Series 6,145,071$ $ (916,095)$ 5,228,976$ 926,568$ 4,302,408$
PCEF Financed Purchase 707,291 (148,161) 559,130 160,108 399,022
CIEDB loan Direct borrowing 662,783 (32,742) 630,041 33,751 596,290
SRF Loan Direct borrowing 2,698,685 (180,516) 2,518,169 184,655 2,333,514
Totals 10,213,830$ $ (1,277,514)$ 8,936,316$ 1,305,082$ 7,631,234$

9



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10



Montara Water and Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Sewer Water Total
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9,993,780$ 3,374,534$ 13,368,314$
Accounts receivable 72,555 506,654 579,209
Deposits receivable 31,523 31,523
Leases receivable 78,239 78,239
Inventory 42,656 42,656
Due from sewer fund 1,391,848 1,391,848

Total current assets 10,144,574 5,347,215 15,491,789

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Nondepreciable
Land and easement 5,000 734,500 739,500
Capacity rights 2,687,547 2,687,547

Depreciable, net 8,107,286 15,385,268 23,492,554
Total capital assets 10,799,833 16,119,768 26,919,601

Other assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,158,394 1,158,394
Leases receivable 70,666 70,666

Total other assets 70,666 1,158,394 1,229,060
Total noncurrent assets 10,870,499 17,278,162 28,148,661
Total assets 21,015,073 22,625,377 43,640,450

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to pensions 113,218 252,003 365,221

Total deferred outflows of resources 113,218 252,003 365,221

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Sewer Water Total
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 224,457 423,059 647,516
Due to water fund 1,391,848 1,391,848
Deposits 40,616 4,303 44,919
Interest payable 6,928 25,181 32,109
Other current liabilities 39,611 39,611
Accrued compensated absences, current 10,926 20,028 30,954
Current portion of long term debt 113,805 1,191,277 1,305,082

Total current liabilities 1,788,580 1,703,459 3,492,039

Long term liabilities
Accrued compensated absences, net of current 29,339 37,678 67,017
General obligation bonds 4,302,407 4,302,407
Other long term obligations 795,801 2,533,026 3,328,827
Net pension liability 12,658 28,173 40,831

Total long term liabilities 837,798 6,901,284 7,739,082
Total liabilities 2,626,378 8,604,743 11,231,121

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases 141,496 141,496
Related to pensions 8,715 19,399 28,114

Total deferred inflows of resources 150,211 19,399 169,610

Net Position
Net investments in capital assets 9,890,227 8,093,058 17,983,285
Restricted 1,158,394 1,158,394
Unrestricted 8,461,475 5,001,786 13,463,261

Total net position 18,351,702$ 14,253,238$ 32,604,940$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Sewer Water Total

Operating Revenues
Sales and service charges 3,847,501$ 1,816,586$ 5,664,087$

Total operating revenues 3,847,501 1,816,586 5,664,087

Operating Expenses
General and administrative 878,517 1,443,070 2,321,587
System maintenance and repairs 2,119,573 777,625 2,897,198
Depreciation and amortization 539,818 1,008,818 1,548,636

Total operating expenses 3,537,908 3,229,513 6,767,421

Operating income (loss) 309,593 (1,412,927) (1,103,334)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Taxes District share of one percent 526,690 526,690 1,053,380
Taxes Ad valorem for general obligation bonds 1,012,555 1,012,555
Investment income 85,304 113,063 198,367
Interest expense (28,650) (133,051) (161,701)
Other revenues (expenses) 79,811 1,022,182 1,101,993

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 663,155 2,541,439 3,204,594

Income before Contributions 972,748 1,128,512 2,101,260

Capital contributions connection fees 274,534 226,806 501,340

Change in net position 1,247,282 1,355,318 2,602,600

Net Position, beginning of year as originally stated 16,957,397 12,897,920 29,855,317

Prior period adjustment 147,023 147,023

Net Position, beginning of year as restated 17,104,420 12,897,920 30,002,340

Net Position, end of year 18,351,702$ 14,253,238$ 32,604,940$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Sewer Water Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users 4,384,775$ 2,779,403$ 7,164,178$
Payments to suppliers other (3,075,863) (1,907,881) (4,983,744)
Payments to employees (403,077) (979,721) (1,382,798)

Net cash provided by operating activities 905,835 (108,199) 797,636

Cash Flows from Non Capital Activities
Property taxes collected 526,690 1,539,245 2,065,935
Interfund advances 33,942 (33,942)

Net cash provided by non capital activities 560,632 1,505,303 2,065,935

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Activities
Principal paid on long term debt (106,831) (1,170,683) (1,277,514)
Interest paid on long term debt (29,161) (137,494) (166,655)
Acquisition and contruction of capital assets (596,689) (609,185) (1,205,874)
Connection fees 274,534 226,806 501,340
Water reliability charges and other nonop rev 78,222 1,022,182 1,100,404

Net cash used in capital and related activities (379,925) (668,374) (1,048,299)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income 85,304 113,063 198,367

Net cash provided by investing activities 85,304 113,063 198,367

Net change in cash 1,171,846 841,793 2,013,639

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 8,821,934 3,691,135 12,513,069
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 9,993,780$ 4,532,928$ 14,526,708$

Amounts as they appear on the Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents 9,993,780$ 3,374,534$ 13,368,314$
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,158,394 1,158,394

9,993,780$ 4,532,928$ 14,526,708$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Sewer Water Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating income 309,593$ (1,412,927)$ (1,103,334)$

Depreciation and amortization 539,818 1,008,818 1,548,636
Pension related amounts 9,277 20,648 29,925

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts and notes receivable (2,544) (46,001) (48,545)
A/P and other current liabilities 36,656 327,959 364,615
Deposits 1,384 (31,291) (29,907)
Prepaid expenses 14,695 14,695
Compensated absences 11,651 9,900 21,551

Total adjustments 596,242 1,304,728 1,900,970

Net cash provided by operating activities 905,835$ (108,199)$ 797,636$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Montara Water and Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. General

Montara Water and Sanitary District (the District), a governmental entity legally constituted as a special
district under California law, is located on the coast in northwestern SanMateo County. The District was
formed in 1958 to provide sanitary sewer services and franchise solid waste collection for the
unincorporated areas known as Montara and Moss Beach. On May 2003 an agreement to acquire Cal
AmMontara Water District was reached with operations beginning as of August 1, 2003.

B. Basis of Accounting

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for financial
statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs and expenses, including depreciation, and providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis, be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector, where the
proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the full accrual basis of accounting is required.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its statement
of net position, and under the full accrual basis of accounting, all revenues are recognized when earned
and all expenses, including depreciation, are recognized when incurred.

A major fund is a fund whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets or liabilities (excluding
extraordinary items) are at least 10 percent of corresponding totals for all funds, or that management
deems significant.

The District reports the following major Proprietary Funds:

Water Enterprise – This enterprise accounts for the operation,maintenance and capital improvement
projects of the water system which is funded by user charges and other fees.

Sewer Enterprise – This enterprise accounts for the operation, maintenance and capital improvement
projects of the sewer system. These activities are funded by user charges and other fees.

Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through
the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws and regulations of other governments. The District first applies restricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is
available.

C. Measurement Focus

Enterprise funds are accounted for on a cost of servicesor economic resourcesmeasurement focus,which
means that all assets and all liabilities associated with their activities are included on their statement of
net position. Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position.
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The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the District’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the District include the cost of
goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non operating revenues and expenses.

D. Investment in the State Investment Pool and California Asset Management Program (Pools)

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California government code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California
and is not registered with the SEC. Investment with California Asset Management Program (CAMP) are
under the oversight of CAMP’s treasurer. The fair value of the District's investment in the Pools are
reported in the accompanying financial statement at amounts based upon the District's pro rata share
of the fair value provided by Pools (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by Pools, which is recorded on
the amortized cost basis.

E. Inventory

Inventory is held for consumption and is recorded at cost using the first in first out (FIFO) basis.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment are recorded at historical costs or
estimated historical cost, if actual cost is not available. Contributed assets are recorded at estimated
acquisition cost on the date of contribution.

The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $2,500 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year.

Depreciation is computed by the straight line method based on the estimated useful lives of related
asset classifications of 3 to 50 years.

G. Cash Flows Defined

For purpose of the statement of cash flows the District defines cash and cash equivalents to include all
cash in deposit accounts, highly liquid investments, investment in LAIF, CAMP, and cash on hand.

H. Accounts Receivable

The District bills its water consumption and sewer usage on a cycle billing method. Cycle billing results
in an amount of services rendered but not yet billed at year end. The District has recorded this revenue
by estimating the unbilled amount. The estimate was calculated by using the billing subsequent to the
balance sheet date (June 30) and calculating the amount of service provided prior to June 30. This
calculated amount is included in accounts receivable.

The delinquent water and sewer charges for services and facilities furnished by the District’s water and
sewage system, and all the penalties or delinquent charges accrued thereon shall constitute a lien upon
the real property served. The District is allowed to place such charges and fees on the property tax rolls
annually as of July 1.
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June 30, 2023

I. Accrued Compensated Absences

The liability for vested vacation pay is calculated and accrued on an annual basis. The amount is
computed using current employee accumulated vacation hours at current pay rates.

J. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. A general
budget is adopted annually by the Board of Directors which includes operations, maintenance, and
administration.

K. Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments due November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10.

Unsecured property taxes, if any, are payable in one installment on or before August 15. The County of
San Mateo bills and collects the taxes for the District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when
received. The sewer service charges are included in secured property tax bills.

L. Contract Services

The District contracted out the operation and maintenance of its sewer facilities to the Sewer Authority
Mid Coastside (SAM).

M. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

N. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position that is applicable to a future reporting
period and deferred inflows of resources are in acquisition of net assets that is applicable to a future
reporting period. A deferred outflow of resources has a positive effect on net assets, similar to assets,
and a deferred inflows of resources has a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities. The District
has one items that qualify for reporting in as deferred outflows of resources: the deferred outflows
related to pension. The District has two deferred inflows of resources: the deferred inflows related to
pension and leases.

O. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

P. Leases

The District recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the government wide
and governmental fund financial statements. At the commencement of a lease, the District initially
measures the lease receivable at the present value of payments expected to be received during the lease
term.
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Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. The
deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted
for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred
inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Q. NewAccounting Principles from the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

GASB Statement No. 91 – In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The
objectives of this Statement is to provide a singlemethod of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers
and eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements
associatedwith conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures by clarifying the existing definition
of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer;
establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and
improving required note disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2021, or FY 2022/2023. The District is evaluating the impact of
this Statement on the financial statement.

GASB Statement No. 93 – In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank
Offered Rates. The objectives of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and reporting
implications resulting from the replacement of an IBOR by providing exceptions for certain hedging
derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced and
providing clarification to the hedge accounting termination provisions, removing LIBOR as a benchmark
interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap, identifying a
Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as appropriate benchmark
interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap and providing
an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 or
FY 2021/2022, except the removal of LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate which is effective for periods
beginning after December 31, 2022 or FY 2022/2023. The District is evaluating the impact of this
Statement on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 94 – In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public Private and Public
Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objectives of this Statement improve
financial reporting by addressing issues related to public private and public public partnership
arrangements (PPPs). The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2022 or FY 2022/2023. The District is evaluating the impact of this Statement on the
financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 96 – In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription Based Information
Technology Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and
financial reporting for subscription based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for
government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA
results in a right to use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription
liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 or FY 2022/2023. The
District is evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial statements.
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R. New Accounting Pronouncements – Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 99 – In April 2022, GASB Issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The objectives
of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting
for financial guarantees.

Certain requirements of this statement have been implemented as of June 30, 2022. The requirements
related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and
reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2023 or FY 2023/2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. The District is
evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 100 – In June 2022, GASB Issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to enhance
accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide
more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions
or assessing accountability. The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes
and error corrections made in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023 or FY 2023/2024 and all
reporting periods thereafter. The District is evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 101 – In June 2022, GASB Issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The
objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of the financial statement users by
updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is
achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by
amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, or FY 2024/2025 and all reporting periods thereafter.
The District is evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

Note 2 Cash and Investments

A. Cash and Investment Summary

The following is a summary of the cash and investments as of June 30, 2023:

Cash Deposits $ 6,500,009
Investments with California Asset Management Program 3,323,180
Investments with Local Agency Investment Fund 4,703,519

 $ 14,526,708

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,158,394
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 13,368,314

 $ 14,526,708
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B. General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are indicated
in the schedules below:

Authorized
Investment Type

Maximum
Remaining
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment
In One Issuer

U.S Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Certificate of Deposit N/A 30% None
California Asset Management Program N/A None None

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by
depositing the majority of its funds with the State Local Agency Investment Fund, which is short term
investment.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate
fluctuation is provided by the following schedule that shows the distribution of the District's investment
by maturity:

Investment Type Fair Value

Average

Maturity

LAIF $ 4,703,519 260 days

CAMP 3,323,180 26 days

$ 8,826,699

D. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measure by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Investment in LAIF are not rated on June 30, 2023.

E. Custodial Credit Risk Deposits

For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned
to it. The District’s Investment Policy addresses custodial credit risk, which follows the Government
Code. Any uninsured bank balance is collateralized by the pledging financial institutions at 110% of the
deposits, in accordance with the State of California Government Code. At June 30, 2023, balances in
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financial institutions, omitting reconciling items, were $6,803,999. Of the balance in financial
institutions, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $6,303,999 was collateralized
as required by State law (Government Code Section 53630), by the pledging financial institution with
assets held in a common pool for the District and other governmental agencies, but not in the name of
the District.

Note 3 Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels,
is based on the valuation inputs used tomeasure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary
of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

 Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the District has the ability to access
at the measurement date. Level 1 assets may include debt and equity securities that are traded in
an active exchange market and that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over the counter
markets.

 Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs
that are observable, such as interest rates and curves observable at commonly quoted intervals,
implied volatilities, and credit spreads. For financial reporting purposes, if an asset has a specified
term, a Level 2 input is required to be observable for substantially the full term of the asset.

 Level 3 Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the
circumstances, which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if
reasonable available information indicates that other market participants would use different data
or certain circumstances specific to the District are not available to other market participants.

 Uncategorized Investments in the Local Agency Investment Funds/State Investment Pools are not
measured using the input levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net
asset value per share. All contributions and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per
share.

The District's investments in LAIF and CAMP are not subject to the fair value measurement.
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Note 4 Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets accounts are summarized below:

Water Fund

Category
Balance

June 30, 2022 Additions Deletions
Balance

June 30, 2023
Sewer Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 5,000 $ $ $ 5,000
Capacity rights 2,687,547 2,687,547

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,692,547 2,692,547

Capital assets being depreciated
Sewage collection facilities 5,340,307 5,340,307
Sewage treatment facilities 244,540 244,540
General plant and administration facilities 8,552,710 596,689 9,149,399
Seal Cove collection system 995,505 995,505
Other capital improvements 3,250,409 3,250,409

Total capital assets being depreciated 18,383,471 596,689 18,980,160
Accumulated depreciation (10,333,056) (539,818) (10,872,874)
Net capital assets being depreciated 8,050,415 56,871 8,107,286
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 10,742,962 $ 56,871 $ $ 10,799,833

Water Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and easement $ 734,500 $ $ $ 734,500

Total capital assets not being depreciated 734,500 734,500

Capital assets being depreciated
Water meters 1,058,985 1,058,985
Water general plant 29,178,537 609,185 29,787,722
Other capital assets 48,172 48,172
Surface water rights 300,000 300,000

Total capital assets being depreciated 30,585,694 609,185 31,194,879
Accumulated depreciation (14,800,793) (1,008,818) (15,809,611)
Net capital assets being depreciated 15,784,901 (399,633) 15,385,268
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 16,519,401 $ (399,633) $ $ 16,119,768

Capacity Rights in Sewer Authority Mid Coastside

The District has capacity rights in the Sewer Authority Mid Coastside (SAM), a public entity created
February 3, 1976 by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division
7, and Chapter 5 of the Government code of the State of California. Other joint power members include
the City of Half Moon Bay and the Granada Community Services District. The District reports these
capacity rights in SAM on cost basis.
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Under this agreement, SAM is granted the power of the member agencies to construct, maintain, and
operate facilities for the collection, transmission, treatment and disposal of wastewater for the benefit
of the lands and inhabitants within their respective boundaries.

Each member agency has the power to appoint two representatives of their own governing body to
SAM’s Board of Directors. Budgets prepared by SAM are subject to approval by the member agencies
and expenditures in excess of the budgeted amounts require unanimous consent and approval of SAM’s
Board of Directors.

SAM provides sewage collection and treatment services, for which the District pays a monthly fee. The
District paid $1,983,369 for these collection and treatment services for the year.

The Sewer Authority Mid Coastside complete audited financial statements are available at 1000 Cabrillo
Hwy N, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019.

Note 5 Leases

The District has multiple contracts for leases of District property wireless communications facilities. The
leases expire between fiscal years 2024 through 2026. The discount rates were between 1.91% and
3.00%. As of June 30, 2023, the District’s receivable for lease payments was $148,905. The District also
has a deferred inflow of resources associated with these leases that will be recognized as revenue over
the lease term. As of June 30, 2023, the balance of the deferred inflow of resources was $141,496.

Note 6 Long Term Obligations

Following is a summary of the changes in long term obligations for the year:
Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Current
Portion

Long term
Portion

General Obligation Bonds, 2020 Series 6,145,071$ $ 916,095$ 5,228,976$ 926,569$ 4,302,407$
PNCEF Financed Purchase 707,285 148,157 559,128 160,108 399,020
CIEDB loan Direct borrowing 662,803 32,753 630,050 33,751 596,299
SRF loan Direct borrowing 2,698,671 180,509 2,518,162 184,654 2,333,508

Totals 10,213,830$ $ 1,277,514$ 8,936,316$ 1,305,082$ 7,631,234$

A. General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020

On November 13, 2020, the District issued General Obligation Bonds Series 2020 in the amount of
$7,524,000. The bonds were issued to fully refund the General Obligation Bonds Series 2012, which the
District issued for the acquisition and improvements of a domestic water supply, treatment, and fire
protection system serving the entire District service area, and to finance improvements to the District’s
water system. The District therefore recognized an economic gain of $360,600 and future cash saving
of $419,027. These bonds are payable from the levy of ad valorem taxes on all property within the
District. Interest on the bonds is 1.4 percent and is payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year,
commencing February 1, 2021.
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Principal is due semi annually beginning February 1, 2021, in amounts ranging from $473,189 to
$488,986, with a final payment of $488,986 due August 1, 2028. Below is a summary schedule of future
payments on the bonds:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 926,569 $ 56,977 $ 983,546
2025 937,160 46,384 983,544
2026 947,876 35,670 983,546
2027 958,712 24,833 983,545
2028 969,673 13,873 983,546
2029 488,986 2,787 491,773
Total $ 5,228,976 $ 180,524 $ 5,409,500

B. Finance Purchase

On November 7, 2006, the District entered into a purchase agreement with a financial institution in the
amount of $1,854,443 at a fixed interest rate of 4.56 percent annually. The agreement matures on
October 7, 2026. The agreement was to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of energy
conservation capital facilities for the District’s water system with the expectation that the cost thereof
will be offset through reductions in future energy costs created by the facilities. As security for its
obligation under this lease the District has pledged to the Lessor a security interest in the net revenue
of both the water and sewer enterprises.

The financing was originally provided by Citibank at a rate of 4.56 percent for a 20 year term and is now
held by PNC Equipment Finance (PNCEF). Effective March 15, 2013, the District refinanced the capital
lease with PNCEF at a rate of 2.95 percent.

Below is a summary schedule of future payments on the financing:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 160,108 $ 14,352 $ 174,460
2025 167,593 9,522 177,115
2026 172,794 4,506 177,300
2027 58,633 361 58,994
Total $ 559,128 $ 28,741 $ 587,869

C. CIEDB Loan

On October 1, 2008, the District entered into an enterprise fund installment sale agreement with
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB) in the amount of $1,010,000. The
agreement was to purchase a facility in order to renovate and upgrade two sewer pump stations. The
agreement matures on December 3, 2037 with principal amounts due August 1, and interest payments
due on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The interest rate is 3.05 percent per annum.
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Below is a summary schedule of future payments on the loan:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 33,751 $ 19,716 $ 53,467
2025 34,781 17,656 52,437
2026 35,841 16,579 52,420
2027 36,935 15,470 52,405
2028 38,061 14,326 52,387

2029 – 2033 208,443 49,522 257,965
2034 – 2038 242,238 21,593 263,831

Total $ 630,050 $ 154,862 $ 784,912

D. State Revolving Fund Loan

On July 10, 2012, theDistrict entered into an agreementwith the State of CaliforniaDepartment ofHealth
under the Safe DrinkingWater State Revolving Fund Law of 1947. This agreement constitutes funding in
the form of a loan and a grant made by the State to the District to assist in financing the cost of studies,
planning and other preliminary activities for a project which will enable the District to meet safe drinking
water standards. Under this agreement, the State will lend the District an amount not to exceed
$500,000, payable in five years from the first principal and interest invoice. On November 14, 2012, the
District entered into an additional agreement with the State of California Department of Health under
the Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Law of 1947. This agreement constitutes funding in the form of
a loanmade by the State to the District to assist in financing the construction of the preliminary activities
noted above.

The District will make semiannual payments for the principal and any interest amounts due January 1
and July 1 of each year until the loan is repaid in full at an interest rate of 2.28 percent per annum.

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 184,654 $ 56,457 $ 241,111
2025 188,895 52,216 241,111
2026 193,234 47,878 241,112
2027 197,671 43,440 241,111
2028 202,211 38,900 241,111

2029 – 2033 1,082,887 122,669 1,205,556
2034 – 2038 468,610 13,450 482,060

Total $ 2,518,162 $ 375,010 $ 2,893,172
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Note 7 Deferred Contribution Plan

The District’s defined contribution, IRS code section 457 pension plan, provides deferred compensation
retirement benefits to planmembers and beneficiaries. Under this plan participants may defer a portion
of their compensation and are not taxed on the deferred portion until it is distributed to them.
Distribution may be made only at termination, retirement, death, or in an emergency as defined by the
plan. The District has contracted with a third party to provide administration and management of the
plan’s assets which are to be held for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.
Since the assets held under this plan are not the District’s property and are not subject to claims by
general creditors of the District, they have been excluded from these financial statements.

Note 8 Defined Benefit Plan

A. Plan Description

The District has adopted, through the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS), a tax qualified
governmental defined benefit plan for the benefit of eligible District employees to provide retirement
benefits. PARS is a private agent multiple employer agency specializing in retirement services. The plan
conforms to the requirements of Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) tax qualified multiple employer
retirement system and therefore is entitled to favorable tax treatment.

Members are eligible to receive benefits under the PARS plan if they:

a) Were a full time employee of the District on or after July 1, 2015;

b) Are at least sixty two years of age;

c) Have completed at least five or more years of full time service with the District;

d) Have applied for benefits under the Plan; and

e) Have terminated employment with the District.

B. Benefits Provided

Members are paid benefits equal to an amount equal to one twelfth (1/12) of the number of full and
partial years of full time continuous employment with the District completed as of the member’s
retirement times the member’s final pay times 2%. Upon death of a member, the member’s monthly
allowance will automatically continue to an eligible survivor. No preretirement disability benefits are
provided. Pre retirement death benefits are provided for employees who have at least five years of full
time employment with the District.

Employees who terminate employment or are terminated whether voluntarily, involuntarily, by death,
disability or in any othermanner prior to completing five (5) years of full time service with the Employer,
will receive one hundred percent (100%) of their Employee contributions made to the Plan plus three
percent (3%) interest per annum.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

Formula 2%@62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life
Retirement age 62
Required employee contribution rates 7.75%
Required employer contribution rates 7.30%

28



Montara Water and Sanitary District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

C. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Plan:

PARS Plan
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees* 8

Total 10
* Plan is closed to new entrants

D. Contributions

The District contributed the actuarially determined contribution to the PARS plan. For the year ended
June 30, 2023, the employer contributions were $74,601.

E. Net Pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022, using
an annual actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2022. A summary of principal assumptions and methods
used to determine the net pension liability is shown below:

Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

 Valuation Date  June 30, 2021
 Contribution Policy  District contributes full ADC
 Discount Rate and
Long Term Expected
Rate of Return on
Assets

 6.25% at June 30, 2022
 6.25 at June 30, 2021
 Expected District contributions projected to keep sufficient plan
assets to pay all benefits from trust

 General Inflation  2.50% annually
 Mortality, Retirement,
Disability, Termination

 CalPERS 2000 2019 Experience Study

 Mortality Improvement  Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP 2021
 Salary Increases  Aggregate – 2.75% annually

 Merit – CalPERS 2000 2019 Experience Study

F. Discount Rate

The best estimate for the long term rate of return of 6.25% is determined by adding expected inflation
to expected long term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The table below
reflects discount rate development. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market
assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net
of administrative expenses.
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Asset Class Component
Target Allocation

PARS Capital Appreciation
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Global equity 75% 4.56%
Fixed income 20% 0.78%
Cash 5% (0.50%)
Assumed long term rate of inflation 2.50%
Expected long term net rate of return, rounded 6.25%

G. Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) for the Plan are as follows:

Total Pension
Liability

Fiduciary
Net Position

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

Balance at 6/30/22
(6/30/21 measurement date) $ 1,034,099 $ 1,233,861 $ (199,762)

Service cost 114,116 114,116
Interest 71,339 71,339
Changes of benefit terms
Actual vs. expected experience
Assumption changes
Contributions – employer 68,381 (68,381)
Contributions – employee 54,638 (54,638)
Net investment income (168,052) 168,052
Benefit payments (13,552) (13,552)
Administrative expenses (10,105) 10,105

Net Changes 171,903 (68,690) 240,593
Balance at 6/30/23
(6/30/22 measurement date) $ 1,206,002 $ 1,165,171 $ 40,831

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Asset (Liability) to Changes in the Discount Rate The following presents
the net pension asset (liability) of the District, calculated using the plan discount rate, as well as what
the District’s net pension asset (liability) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Discount Rate
1% Decrease

(5.25%)
Current Rate

(6.25%)
1% Increase
(7.25%)

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 307,453 $ 40,831 $ (169,879)

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PARS
financial report.
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I. Pension Expense (Revenue) and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized actuarial pension expense of $104,525. At June
30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources as follows:

June 30, 2023
Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 175,552 $ 24,491
Changes in assumptions 24,873 3,623
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments 90,195
Employer contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date 74,601
Total $ 365,221 $ 28,114

Of the $365,221 reported as deferred outflows of resources, $74,601 relates to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2024.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows)

of Resources
2024 $ 45,600
2025 44,916
2026 37,602
2027 78,849
2028 17,605
Thereafter 37,934

Note 9 – Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft, damage, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disaster. The District joined together with other
entities to form the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 54 member entities. The
purpose of CSRMA is to spread the adverse effects of losses among themember entities and to purchase
excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its cost. The District pays annual premiums to CSRMA for
its general, liability, property damage and monthly premiums to State Fund for its workers
compensation insurance.

CSRMA is governed by a Board composed of one representative from each member agency. The Board
controls the operations of CSRMA including selection of management and approval of operating
budgets, independent of any influence by member entities.
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The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the District as of June 30, 2023:

Type of Coverage Coverage Limits
General Liability $ 15,500,000
Workers’ Compensation 2,000,000

Claims and judgments, including provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recordedwhen a loss
is deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed
above, the Districthas coverage for suchclaims,but it had retained the risk for thedeductibleoruninsured
portion of these claims.

The District has not exceeded its insurance coverage limits in any of the last three years. Any District
liability is included in accrued expenses on the financial statements.

Note 10 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The District has an agreement with Sewer Authority Mid Coastside (SAM), Granada Community Services
District, and City of Half Moon Bay for the purchase of additional plant sewer capacity on an as needed
basis. The District may purchase additional capacity in the SAM plant, if such additional capacity is
available, at a cost per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) in effect. The future price would be an average
current cost per ERU charged a property in the City of Half Moon Bay and Granada Community Services
District plus accrued interest as stipulated in the agreement. At this time the District needs no additional
capacity.

The District is a plaintiff or defendant in a number of lawsuits, which have arisen in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the District, these actions when finally adjudicated will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the District.

Note 11 Restatement of Beginning Net Position

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District overstated expenses by $147,023. The issue
derived due to a capitalized expense discovered through the audit process. The accrued expense was
not reversed until fiscal year end June 30, 2023. The reversal was recorded as an adjustment to prior
period net position, see the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS  

To the Board of Directors 
Montara Water and Sanitary District 
Montara, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of Montara Water and Sanitary District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Montara Water and Sanitary 
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2023.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Montara Water and 
Sanitary District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Montara Water and Sanitary District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Montara Water and Sanitary District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

We consider the following deficiency to be a significant deficiency: 

 Reconciliations of Accounts Payable: During fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District 
overstated expenses by $147,023. The issue arose due to a capitalized expense discovered 
through the audit process of that same year. The overstated accrued expenses balance was 
discovered by District staff before the audit of the June 30, 2023, financial statements began. A 
prior period adjustment was made to correct the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2023. We recommend that the District implement procedures to review and reconcile and regular 
monitoring. The District can accomplish this by establishing a system for regular monitoring by 

2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 270
Walnut Creek, CA 94598

(925) 932-3860 tel
(925) 476-9930 efax

37



38



Page 1 of 4 

 

 

October 25, 2023 

To management and the Board of Directors 
Montara Water and Sanitary District 
Montara, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Montara Water and Sanitary 
District for the year ended June 30, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to 
the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you 
dated August 17, 2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Montara Water and Sanitary District are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Montara Water and Sanitary District 
changed accounting policies by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB 
Statement) No. 91, No. 93, No. 94, and No. 96 in fiscal year 2022-2023. Accordingly, the cumulative 
effect of the adoption of these statements did not have a material effect on the financial statements (see 
Note 1 for additional information on the new accounting principles from the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board). We noted no transactions entered into by Montara Water and Sanitary District during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions 
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District’s financial statements was: 

Management’s estimate of the pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows 
is based on CalPERS discount rates, market rates, member contributions, and other 
actuarial inputs. We evaluated the methods, assumptions, and data used to develop the 
pension liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  

The disclosure of Deferred Benefit Plan in Note 8 to the financial statements which 
describes the pension liability, the related deferred inflows and outflows, and the 
sensitivity of inputs and estimates that went into the liability. 

2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 270
Walnut Creek, CA 94598
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The disclosure of the Long Term Obligations in Note 6 to the financial statements which 
describes each of the long term obligations held by the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements 
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually 
or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.  

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 25, 2023. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to Montara Water and Sanitary District’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as Montara Water and Sanitary 
District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in 
net pension liability and related ratios, and schedule of plan contributions, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  
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Account Description Debit Credit
Net Income
Effect

4220 4220Cell Tower Lease 83,359
1226 Sewer Accounts Receivable:Lease Receivable Noncurrent 78,240
7200 7000Capital Account Revenues:7200 Interest Income LAIF 5,119
Total 83,359 83,359 (78,240)

2903 Sewer Long Term Liabilities:Deferred Inflows (Sewer Leases) 79,829
4220 4220Cell Tower Lease 79,829
Total 79,829 79,829 79,829

2800 Sewer Net Pension Liability 74,584
1901 Sewer Other Assets:Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 19,459
2901 Deferred Inflows (Pensions):Sewer 45,848
5820 5000Administrative:5800 Labor:5820 Employee Benefits 9,277
Total 74,584 74,584 (9,277)

2801 Water Net Pension Liability 166,009
1902 Water Other Assets:Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 43,314
2902 Deferred Inflows (Pensions):Water 102,047
5820 5000Administrative:5800 Labor:5820 Employee Benefits 20,648
Total 166,009 166,009 (20,648)

2600 Sewer Long Term Liabilities:Due toWater Fund 147,023
3100 Sewer Equity Accounts:Fund Balance Unrestricted 147,023
Total 147,023 147,023

GRAND TOTAL 550,804 550,804 (28,336)

Client #1Record Lease Amortization

Client #2Record Deferred Inflow Amortization

Client #3 Record Sewer GASB 68Adjustment.

Client #4RecordWater GASB 68Adjustment.

Client #5Beginning Fund Balance adjustment correction of PY error Erroneous Sewer A/P.

MONTARAWATERANDSANITARY DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 2023

CORRECTEDMISSTATEMENTS



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of: November 2, 2023 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

 
  

SUBJECT:   Alta Vista Groundwater Monitoring Update 

 
For the initial 5 years of operation of the District’s Alta Vista Well, MWSD was 
charged with the implementation of a groundwater monitoring program. MWSD 
chose to extend the groundwater monitoring beyond the required term and 
expanded the program to include other scientific measures that increase the 
understanding of the aquifer. 
 
The Alta Vista Well is drilled deep into solid bedrock of granitic type unlike most 
drinking water wells in California that are in non-consolidated sediments. 
Therefore, usual draw down and recovery tests are not suited to evaluate 
production rates and pumping sustainability.  
 
Mark Woyshner with Balance Hydrologics will be available to present the most 
recent monitoring results. The attached slide show containing the information 
was presented at the most recent Groundwater Resources Association of 
California. 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive presentation about the District’s management of the underlying granitic 
aquifer in Montara. 
 
 
Attachment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TRACK 2 – GROUNDWATER QUALITY
Sustainable Management of a Fractured Granitic

Aquifer in Coastal California



Sustainable Management of a 
Fractured Granitic Aquifer 

in Coastal California 

Mark Woyshner, Clemens Heldmaier,  Barry Hecht, 
Emma Goodwin, and Jason Parke



Methods to Evaluate Sustainability
✓ Geologic framework of aquifer: Fracture orientation and boundaries

✓ Hydrologic monitoring across a cycle of major recharge and drought years

✓ General mineral: Piper diagram

✓ Groundwater age techniques: 
• Modern water (Tritium-helium, CFCs, SF6)

• Pre-modern water (Radiogenic helium, 14C)

• Paleoclimate indicators (18O and 2H, Noble-gas recharge temperature)

✓ Groundwater modeling: Water balance and recharge area estimates

✓ Historical records / Indigenous traditions



Well Site

Non-glaciated, 
deeply weathered 

granitic rock 
promotes recharge, 

provides storage and 
sustains baseflows.
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Acoustic televiewer of open
joints at bottom of well

West East

Air-rotary hammer drilling 
after intersecting open joints

715 ft

NESWN

720 ft

725 ft

730 ft

735 ft

2-ft open joint 
dip 58 deg N003W

1-ft open joint 
dip 40 deg N021E

Following well completion in 2004: a 5-day test at 300 gpm,

a 60-day test at 40 gpm. Specific Capacity = 1.4 gpm/ft

Sea Level



Geologic Framework 
✓ Geologic mapping

✓ Aerial photo interpretation

✓ Borehole logging and geophysics

✓ Acoustic televiewer results

✓ Constant rate pumping test results

Schmidt-net plot of discontinuities



Hydrologic Monitoring 
across a cycle of 

major recharge and drought years
✓ Rainfall

✓ Streamflow

✓ Shallow groundwater in alluvium

✓ Deep groundwater in fractured bedrock

✓ Adapted drawdown guidelines from Carmel Valley (McNiesh, 1986)



Groundwater Age Techniques 

✓ Modern water (Tritium-helium, CFCs, SF6)

✓ Pre-modern water (Radiogenic helium, 14C)

✓ Paleoclimate indicators (18O and 2H, Noble-gas recharge temperature)

Rainfall at Alta Vista Gage AV Well Discharge at Stream Gages Alta Vista Well Groundwater Age[2] Portola #3 Well Groundwater Age

Water Water Year Annual Percent Volume Martini Cr Daffodil Cyn Montara Cr MW-1 MW-2 Sample Modern Water Pre-Modern Water

Year Type [3]
Total of Mean Pumped (unimpaired)(unimpaired) (impaired) Elevation Elevation Date Method Result Methods

(inches) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (ft NGVD29) (ft NGVD29) (P/A)

2005 Wet 43.9 152% 0 678 not gaged not gaged 369 359  --  --  --  --  -- 

2006
Extremely 

Wet
48.5 168% 0 1116 not gaged not gaged 369 359  --  --  --  --  -- 

2007 Dry 24.5 85% 0 411 not gaged not gaged 365 358  --  --  --  --  -- 

2008 Dry 25.0 87% 87.5 361 not gaged not gaged 364 356  --  --  --  --  -- 

2009 Dry 23.8 83% 112
partia l

record
15 1 364 355  --  --  --  --  -- 

2010
Above

Average
33.6 117% 97.4 408 37 138 364 357  --  --  --  --  -- 

2011 Wet 39.6 138% 99.2
partia l

record
127 325 367 358 3/28/11

Inconclus ive 

but present
3H-3He Absent

Carbon-14 

Radiogenic helium

2012 Dry 24.0 83% 84.7
partia l

record
27 71 366 358  --  --  --  --  -- 

2013 Dry 26.8 93% 151 356 50 40 361 354  --  --  --  --  -- 

2014
Extremely

Dry
17.6 61% 186 226 30 0 347

< 350
(wel l  dry)

10/30/14 1991 ± 4 yrs 3H-3He Absent Radiogenic helium

2015 Dry 24.7 86% 141 213 27 23 347
< 350

(wel l  dry)
10/27/15 1966 to 1972 CFCs Present Carbon-14

2016 Average 29.2 102% 113 410 57 151 360 354 10/20/16 1975 to 1989 CFCs Absent Carbon-14

2017 Wet 42.5 148% 81.0 965 127 542 366 357 8/23/17 1975 to 1988
CFCs, SF6

3H-3He
Absent

Carbon-14 

Radiogenic helium

2018
Extremely

Dry
19.0 66% 99.1 352 30 77 360 354  --  --  --  --  -- 

2019 Average 29.7 103% 86.5 479 66 92 364 356  --  --  --  --  -- 

2020
Extremely

Dry
17.1 59% 104 272 7.6 13 354 351  --  --  --  --  -- 

2021
Extremely

Dry
14.2 49% 123 167 8.0 0.9 346

< 350
(wel l  dry)

10/19/21 2011 3H-3He Absent Carbon-14

2022 Average 27.8 97% 90.4 419 107 163 356 354  --  --  --  --  -- 

2023 Wet pending pending pending pending pending pending pending pending pending pending CFCs, SF6 pending Carbon-14

Mean  -- 28.8 100% 110 513 52 134  --  --  --  --  --  --  -- 

CONDITIONS RESPONSES INDICATORS

Recharge

Year [4]

D
ro

u
gh

t
D

ro
u

gh
t

D
ro

u
gh

t

Dry-Season Minimum [1]



Qualitative Check 
✓ Since start of pumping in 2007, the Alta Vista well has been pumped at 

an average (continuous) rate of 68 gpm or 110 acre-feet per year.

✓ Recharge area estimates

Average annual recharge 8 6 4 inches

Average annual groundwater pumping 110 110 110 acre-feet

Estimated recharge area needed 165 221 331 acres

Percent of 360-acre topographic 
watershed upstream of the well

46% 61% 92% percent



✓ Origin story necessary characteristics (graditude and a capacity for 
reciprocity)

✓ Honorable harvest guidelines (caring for Mother Earth)

✓ Land back programs

Indigenous Traditions
Geologic framework and monitoring across a cycle of wet and dry years

Recharge area estimate

CEQA compliance

Conservation programs

Adaptive management

Master plan update

65th anniversary celebration



Thank You!
We believe this is a successful habitat-responsible adaptive-management 

approach to managing a complex fractured bedrock aquifer.





M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 

 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:   General Manager’s Report  
 

Operations Report 
October 

811 Dig Alerts 
• 10/2/23- 687 Stetson. Utility work. Marked main and service line. 

o Christine Rd. Not in district 
• 10/9/23- 898 San Ramone. Installation of new water facilities. Marked with 

blue flag. 
o 1040 Park Way. Pipe Bursting. Marked mains with blue paint. 
o 175 Marine Blvd. Pipe Bursting. Marked mains with blue paint. 
o 1040 Park Way. Pipe Bursting. Marked mains with blue paint. 
o 151 Alton Ave. Pipe Bursting. Marked mains with blue paint. 

• 10/12/23 – 10th St, Sign install, Main and service line marked.   
o 286 11th. Sign install, Main and service line marked.  
o Main St. Sign install, mains and service line marked.  
o Hwy 1. Sign install, mains and service line marked.  
o 200 9th. Sign install, mains and service line marked.  

• 10/17/23 – 911 Harte. Installation of new communication facilities. Mains 
and service lines marked 

• 10/19/23 – 279 California, Residential sewer lateral repair, marked main 
and service line.  

o 1020 Alta Vista, no water in USA zone 
• 10/20/23- 60 Wylvale Ave.  Comms distribution maintenance, marked 

main, blowoff and service line.  
• 10/23/23- 468 4th. Residential property work for landscaping. Marked 

meter box and service line. 
o Farallone View School. Work for non-residential property work. No 

MWSD distribution lines within USA marks. 
o 945 Etheldore. Work for residential property work, tree removal. 

Marked mains and service lines within USA. 

  
 
 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 

 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
 
 
 
Work Orders 

• 9/29/23-502 Vermont. The customer requested water be turned off at 
meter to perform a plumbing job. Water shut off at meter and the customer 
was able to make repairs quickly enough for operator to turn water back 
on and test the customer’s system. 

o 824 Stetson. The customer is concerned about high water bill and 
requests a profile be taken. Profile taken and finding sent to the 
customer.  

• 10/2/23- 825 Franklin. MOVO. Final read taken and water left on. 
• 10/5/23- 370 2nd. The customer is complaining about the water tasting 

strange in their house and would like the water tested inside and out. His 
question is whether it is MWSD system water or the plumbing in the new 
house. Cl2 residual 0.07, white bucket test shows clear water with no 
odor. 

o 508 8th. MOVO. Final read taken and water turned off at meter, 
door tag left. 

• 10/6/23- 1894 SVR. MOVO. Final read taken and water left on. 
o 508 8th. MOVI.  Start read taken and water turned on. 

• 10/12/23- 1360 Cedar. The customer is concerned about high usage and 
requests a profile and leak adjustment if applicable. Visual inspection 
revealed no indication of a leak or active flow while monitoring. A profile 
was pulled and emailed findings to the customer. 

o 575 4th. The customer has questions about the door tag that was 
left at his house. MWSD operator spoke with customer and clarified 
that they have a leak somewhere on their property and to please 
notify MWSD when repairs are made so we can pull a follow up 
profile. 

• 10/19/23- 531 Lancaster. The homeowner is upset about sewer service 
charge based on January usage. Profile pulled but only able to retrieve 
information back to July when new register and endpoint were installed. 
The customer was emailed available information and past usage history 
as a reference.  

After Hours Call Outs 
 
 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  November 2, 2023 

 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
 
 
 
Repairs and Leaks 

• Leaking meter stop replacement at 610 Harte. 
• Leaking meter stop replacement at 2355 Carlos. 

Miscellaneous 
• Operation Dead Endpoint Absent Reads. 

O.D.E.A.R. 
o 453 missed reads. 
o 10 High Usages 
o 5 MIA meters located. 

Maintenance  
• 203 dead meters replaced. 
• Training of 2 Temps for meter register head and endpoint replacement. 
• Cleaning of Aerator and Settling Tank at PRTP. 

 
Gm Leave: The General Manager will be out of the office from November 13-17. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
This is for Board information only. 
 
 
Attachment 
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